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Message from Chairman

On the behalf of our Board of Director, I am delighted to express my sincere gratitude and warm regards
to all our respected shareholders, representatives from regulatory bodies, auditors, legal advisors, Chief
Executive Officer and entire stakeholders for your remarkable presence in this 17" Annual General Meeting
of the development bank.

I take this opportunity to assure everyone that through this support of our stakeholders, we commit full
dedication towards our responsibilities to achieve our stakeholders’ expectation and faith.

It gives me immense pleasure to place before you the highlights of the bank’s performance during the
financial year 2077.78. We have expanded our balance sheet size by 45.41% and reached to NPR 47.84
billion and generated net profit of NPR 410 million. Our Earning Per Share has increased from Rs. 7.33 to
Rs. 14.98 in current fiscal year.

As on 31% Ashad 2078, the development bank has been providing its banking services to its stakeholders
through 95 branches and 31 ATMs throughout the country. Similarly, by the end of 31%* Ashad 2078, the
deposit customer base of this bank stood at around 360 thousand, mobile banking customers stood at 76
thousand, number of Debit card holders stood at 28 thousand.

Similarly, by creating direct employment opportunity for 735 employees, the bank has contributed in
bringing about positive changes in the lives of their dependents.

The Board of Directors of our development bank is continuously engaged with the management to setup
business goals which shall benefit to all the stakeholders.

I express my gratitude to all the stakeholders for your contribution and cooperation with this development
bank and keeping your trust in our mission.

Thank You,

Achyut Prasad Prasai
Chairman
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It is formed after merger of two local level development banks named Bageshwari Development Bank Ltd.
based in Nepalgunj and Shangri-la Development Bank Ltd. based in Pokhara. At present, Shangri-la

Development Bank Ltd. is one of the largest National Level
Development Banks with Branch network of 98 branches. Shangri-
la Development Bank Ltd. had acquired Cosmos Development
Bank Ltd. and started its joint operation from 30 Ashad, 2074.

We value our customers and our policies are adapted to meet the
best interest of our customers and our stakeholders by catering
pragmatic and reliable services. We are committed to provide the
quality products and services to every customer with utmost
courtesy and care.

As on Ashad end 2078, the bank has a noticeable Balance Sheet size
of NPR 47.84 billion with 95 branches and 31 ATMs across the
country serving more than 360 thousand happy customers from
different age groups, communities and societies. Likewise, mobile

No. of Branches

Total
Branches

FY 2077.78
95

Branches
Opened

4

banking customers stood at 76 thousand and number of Debit card holders stood at 28 thousand.

Similarly, the development bank has entered into an agreement with CDS and Clearing Ltd. to function as

Depository Participant to facilitate its customers.

Our basic objective is to deliver quality banking services for the development of economy of the country

through appropriate new and improved banking techniques.
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Key Financial Highlights as on Ashad End 2078

* 47.84 BILLION
* 45.41% growth
BALANCE

SHEET SIZE
(NPR)
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* 36.18 BILLION
* 51.63% growth

* 42.84 BILLION
* 46.48% growth

DEPOSITS

. (NPR)

* Earning Per Share Rs.14.98
» 104.37% growth

* Capital Adequacy Ratio 11.77%
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Trend Analysis of Growth During Last Five Fiscal Years
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Operating Profit
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Paid-up Capital
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Net Worth Per Share (Rs.)
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors have been acting in adherence to operate the development bank in interests of
depositors, customers and general shareholders taking into consideration overall risk management of the
development bank. The Board make assurance not to intervene into daily conduct of business.

The Board of Directors comprise of seven members headed by Chairman, Mr. Achyut Prasad Prasai. The
competent and experienced directors ensure a good governance and provide right direction to the
management to achieve organization’s vision, mission and goals. There were 23 board meetings held in the
fiscal year.

Details of Directors with date of appointment is given below:

Relationship Date of Appointment

Mr. Achyut Prasad Prasai Chairman Appointed on 30 Poush 2075
Mr. Ganga Sagar Dhakal Director Appointed on 30" Poush 2075
Mr. Naresh Man Tuladhar Director Appointed on 9 Poush 2076
Mr. Sushil Kaji Baniya Director Appointed on 30" Poush 2075
Ms. Lisa Sherchan Director Appointed on 28™ Magh 2076
Mr. Raju Nath Khanal Director Appointed on 26" Shrawan 2076
Mr. Nitish Gupta Director Appointed on 25" Ashwin 2078

Mr. Achyut Prasad Prasai

Mr. Achyut Prasad Prasai, resident of Nepalgunj 02, Banke district has done Master in Business Administration. He
has been engaged with the bank as Chairman since 30™ Poush 2075. He is also director at Nepalgunj Educational
Foundation and also President of Radio Bheri Abbaj, Nepalgunj / Community Reform Committee, Nepalgun;.

Mr. Ganga Sagar Dhakal

Mr. Ganga Sagar Dhakal, resident of Aadhikhola 06, Syangja district has done Master Degree in Humanities & Social
Science. He has been engaged with the bank as director since 30™ Poush 2075. Also, he has worked as a Gazetted
Third-Class Officer and Second-Class Officer in Government of Nepal.

Mr. Naresh Man Tuladhar

Mr. Naresh Man Tuladhar, resident of Ganabahal 21, Kathmandu district has done Master in Business Administration
in Finance. He has been engaged with the bank as director since 9" Poush 2076. He has also worked in Group of
Business Consultant Pvt. Ltd. (GBC), Asian Adhesive Pvt. Ltd. and Unique College of Management.

Mr. Sushil Kaji Baniya

Mr. Sushil Kaji Baniya, resident of Dhumbarahi 04, Kathmandu district has done Master of Laws and Master in Arts.
He has been engaged with the bank as director since 30™ Poush 2075. He has working experience as a legal consultant
in various Multi-national and national companies/ in court litigations and in the area of legal research.
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Ms. Lisa Sherchan

Ms. Lisa Sherchan, resident of Tokha 03, Kathmandu district has done Master of Science in Business
Analytics. She has been engaged with the bank as director since 28" Magh 2076. She has working
experience as a Director in Three Sixty Education Solutions, Goldman Sach Asset Management (GSAM)
in Bangalore, GSAM-Compliance Officer and Goldman Sach Asset Management in New York, GSAM
Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Officer.

Mr. Raju Nath Khanal

Mr. Raju Nath Khanal, resident of Myagdi 1, Gunadhi Tanahu district has done Master in Business
Administration. He is serving in the capacity of independent director and has been engaged with the bank
since 26™ Shrawan 2076. He has long period of working experience in Nepal Bank Ltd.

Mr. Nitish Gupta

Mr. Nitish Gupta, resident of Nepalgunj 01, Banke district has done Master in Business Administration in
Finance and Marketing. He has been engaged with the bank as director since 25" Ashwin, 2078. He has
also worked as Manager Sales and Market Analysis in Steel Trading since 2014 A.D.

Committee of Directors:

To take the informed decision in the best interest of the development bank, the Board has constituted various
committees. These committees are formed as per the Unified Directives of the Nepal Rastra Bank (The
Regulatory Authority) and work as per the terms of reference provided therein. Following are the
Committees of Directors of the Bank:

Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the development bank is comprised of three members, one director from the Board
as a coordinator. Head Internal Audit is the member secretary. The development bank has an independent
Internal Audit Department under this committee. Internal Audit is an independent appraisal function within
the development bank to examine and evaluate its activities.

The basic objective of the development bank’s Internal Audit Department is to assist the management in
the effective discharge of their responsibilities. It assists the development bank to accomplish its objectives
by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, internal control and governance process.

During the year seven meetings of Audit Committee were held.
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Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors (BoD) is the apex and supreme authority of the development bank and is responsible to
frame and implement robust policies and framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction
issued by the regulatory authority. BoD ensures the strategies, policies and procedure is in accordance with
the risk appetite/tolerance limit for effective management of risk within the development bank. The Board
understands the nature of risk of the development bank, and periodically reviews reports on risk
management, including policies and standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through the
reporting by the Risk Management Committee.

During the year five meetings of Risk Management Committee were held.

Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee

The committee ensures that the development bank complies with all the regulations under Asset (Money)
Laundering Prevention Act, Asset (Money) Laundering Prevention Rule & the Directives on AML/CFT
issued by Nepal Rastra Bank. It reviews the adequacy of the resources (including information technology
tools) to identify, measure & mitigate the money laundering issues and reports the same to the Board. The
committee also reviews and reports to the Board the existing methodology, policy, processes etc. and need
for improvement to identify all kinds of money laundering risks on timely manner.

During the year four meetings of Assets Money Laundering Prevention Committee were held.

Employee Service Benefit Committee

The Employee Service Benefit Committee of the development bank works on the identifying and
addressing policies and current trends of employee issues, including the changes in legislation as well as
enhanced benefit programs, and use of the plans to remain competitive in market.

The Committee is coordinated by a director of the Board having the Head Human Resource Department as
a member secretary. The Committee reviews and recommends the Board for approval of the Human
Resources strategy including key HR objectives, plans and workforce requirements, recruitment promotion,
selection, transfer & placement norms and monitors the implementation of the same.

During the year eight meetings of Employee Service Benefit Committee were held.
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COVID-19: Diverging into Possibilities

The Novel
Corona  Virus
has changed our
life drastically.
The world
economy  has
major

breakthrough to
deal with this
situation.  So,
the model of
doing business
has changed and
we have moved
from Brick
Banking to
Click Banking.

Due to the gravity of the both pandemic and the lockdown; the constraint of movement of people, goods,
resources and business, the economy was heavily affected. The general public had to face many difficulties
during this period.

Despite the situation, we have always put our customer’s needs at the fore front including well-being of
our employees. We have formulated different strategies to overcome the challenges and threats created by
this unexpected situation. The initiatives taken by our bank during this pandemic are briefly presented
below:

Branch and ATM Service

Shangri-la Development Bank Ltd. has a vision to serve the customers at its level best despite of
unfavorable circumstances. All our 31 ATMs were operated 24/7 for serving the customers. We had placed
notice regarding emergency contact number to be coordinated, if any awkward situation arises. Branches
and ATMs were thoroughly sanitized and precaution were used to verify the safety and security of our
stakeholders. Branches operating schedule was published in our website on daily basis so, our customers
would not face any difficulties.

Disinfection and Social Distancing

As our customers and employees are our important assets, their health is our prime matter of concern.
Sanitation kits such as masks, gloves and face shield were provided to each employee from security guard
to executive level. Sanitizer dispensing unit were also placed at branch premises for customers/visitors to
use. Thermal gun was also kept for temperature check for both visitors and employees at branches. There
was sufficient social distancing while doing banking transactions. Our staffs were also showing great
concern to maintain the health protocol issued by the government.
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Work from Home Access and Staff Training
To provide uninterrupted service to our customers, we had

Training

On

provided our staffs access from home to run day to day AML/CFT
for Employees of Shangrila Dev. Bank

transaction smoothly. Customers were facilitated through phone
calls and virtual meetings by our employees regarding any of i1 it g
their queries about our product and services. & - WR Mmm";“'t = o
We had also conducted numerous trainings to our staffs through o

virtual platform to enhance their knowledge base in the banking
sector.

Digital Marketing and Awareness

Shangri-la Development Bank Ltd. has been

regularly updating messages, tips regarding

COVID related issues. All the notices were made
5 . available in the bank’s website and social media

wiyen e wfiew qoa B . platform for the customers to know about any

RdvaEs: ; S F information regarding the bank.
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bbbl As we are moving towards the digital era to cope

with this fast-growing industry, we have installed
the digital display at our corporate office building
to provide updated information regarding our products, services, festivals discounts, financial literacy and
COVID awareness messages.

Latest Product and Services

During the pandemic situation, we have never compromised to provide top-most services to our valued
customers. So, we had introduced brand new product and services. Deposit schemes for women (Shangri-
la Nari Bachat), minor (Shangri-la Bal Bhabisya Bachat) and old-age individuals (Shangri-la Jestha Nagarik
Bachat) were launched.
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Our “Ek ko dui Muddati Khata”
and “Recurring Deposit” product
were very popular amongst our
depositors as we had provided
online account opening facilities
so that our customers could easily
open any accounts without
visiting the branches. Our bank
has also provided online fixed
renewal services so anyone who
have access to internet services
can easily renew their fixed
deposit account. Customers can
also apply for online loan
application. We have tried to push
forward our digital services in an
effective manner.

We have installed “50 Reflective Htghway Hoardmg Board” from Nagdhunga to Pokhara which mainly
focus on social awareness information to our stakeholders and promotes visibility of our brand.
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Value Added Statement

The Value-Added Statement (also known as an added-value statement) is a financial statement showing
how much wealth (the value-added) has been created by the collective effort of capital, employees, and
others resources and how it has been allocated to the stakeholders, employees, government, community,
shareholder and expansion and growth of the bank within an accounting period.

Value Added Statement of the bank during the fiscal year 2077.78 and 2076.77 are depicted below:

Amount in million

Particulars FY 2077.78 FY 2076.77 Change (%)
Interest earned 3,515.21 3,135.05 12.13%
Other Income 479.92 176.20 172.37%
Interest Expenses 2,308.69 2,084.75 10.74%
Other Operating Expenses 290.61 254.58 14.15%
Value Added by Banking Service 1,395.83 971.92 43.62%
Impairment Charge for Loans and other losses 236.07 259.48 -9.02%
Gross Value Added 1,159.77 712.44 62.79%
Application Statement
To Employees
Salaries and Other Benefits 490.23 366.79 33.66%
To Government
Income Taxes 185.40 79.64 132.81%
To Community
Corporate Social Responsibility 4.10 1.91 114.59%
To Shareholders
Dividend and Bonus shares 288.10 137.19 110.00%
To Expansion and Growth
Reserves and Accumulated Profit 117.88 52.00 126.71%
Depreciation and Amortization 80.93 77.34 4.64%
Deferred Taxation (6.88) (2.42) 183.90%
Total of Value Added Allocation 1,159.77 712.44 62.79%

The value added by the bank stood at NPR 1,159.77 million as on Ashad 2078 compared to NPR 712.44
million in the previous year.

For the year ended Ashad 2078, the application statement comprised of value addition to various
stakeholders of the bank. The current value addition of 42.27% has been apportioned to the employees of
the bank for the salaries and other benefits and 15.99% to the Government. Similarly, the community,
shareholders and expansion & growth received 0.35%, 24.84% and 16.55% respectively of the total value
addition.

Market Value Added

Market Value is the difference between the market value and total book value of the bank. It shows the
difference between the current market value of the bank and capital contributed by investors. It is the sum
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of all capital claims held against the bank plus the market value of debt and equity. Positive market value
added depicts the bank has added value.

Amount in million

Particulars FY 2077.78 FY 2076.77
Market Price Per Share (Rs.) 424.00 141.00
Number of shares 27.37 26.07
Total Market Value 11,604.76 3,675.36
Book Value per share (Rs.) 135.64 126.83
Number of shares 27.37 26.07
Total Book Value 3,712.47 3,306.04
Market Value Added 7,892.29 369.33

The total market value of the bank has increased by NPR 7,929.40 million and has reached to NPR
11,604.76 million. Similarly, the total book value of the shares has increased by NPR 406.44 million and
has reached to NPR 3,712.47 million.

With the increase in the market value of shares and book value of shares, the total market value added in
the FY 2077.78 has reached to NPR 7,892.29 million as compared to NPR 369.33 million in the previous
year.

Economic Value Added

Economic Value Added (EVA) is the financial performance measurement tool which is used to measure
the value of a company generated from the fund invested in it. It is an estimate of bank’s economic profit
or the value created in excess of the required return of the bank’s shareholders. Economic Value Added is
the profit earned by the bank less the cost of financing the bank’s capital.

Amount in million

FY 2077.78 FY 2076.77

Net Operating Profit after Tax 410.08 191.10
Average Shareholder's Fund 3,509.25 3,320.60
Cost of Capital Employed (%) 10% 10%
Cost of Capital Employed (Amount) 350.93 332.06
Economic Value Added 59.16 (140.96)

The bank has generated Economic Value Added of NPR 59.16 million as on Ashad end 2078 compared to
NPR (140.96) million last year. Cost of Equity has been assumed to be 10%, slightly higher than the return
on government bonds by considering the difference between the cost of equity and return on government
bonds to be risk premium.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHANGRI-LA DEVELOPMENT BANK LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Shangri-la Development Bank Ltd. (referred to as the
“Bank ™), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 31,2078 (July 15, 2021),
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
Financial Position of the Bank as at Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021), and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards

[NFRS].

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit it accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing [NSA]. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

S. No. Key Audit Matters Auditor Response

Interest Income: Our audit approach included clear
understanding of the Core Banking Software of
the bank i.c., how the interest income is daily
accrued regarding the loans and advances.
Furthermore, we have relied on the engineers’
valuation of the collateral for determination of

fair value regarding collateral testing.

a)

The interest income of the bank has been
recognized on accrual basis and following the
Interest income guidelines issued by NRB on
2019. The Guidelines specify the conditions
for collateral testing in case the overdue last for
3-12 months and reversal of accrued interest on
overdue more than 12 months. Also, we have test checked the interest income

S - booking with manual computation and no
Furthermore, the guidelines have specified b . e :

conditions for collective impairment of the
loan as well. In case of improper application of
the guidelines and determination of the Fair
Value of the collateral, it imposes risk on part
of interest income. Thus, we have considered
it as the key audit matter.

deviation was observed.

Further, we have test checked the collateral’s
fair value as per the NRB Income recognition
guidelines,
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Key Audit Matters

Auditor Response

b)

COVID-19 impact on the bank and NRB
circular compliance thercon:

Due to ongoing impact of COVID-19 afier the
rise of second wave of COVID-19, further
lock-down was imposed from 29 April 2021
till 21 June 2021 and partially lifted then after.
Due to Lockdown, the profitability of the bank
along with operational function was highly
impacted and NRB issued various circulars for
the benefit of the stakeholders and the bank.
Since the matter imposed created impact on the
performance of bank, we have considered this
as the key audit matter.

Qur audit approach regarding the COVID-19
continued impact and thc mitigation approach
by the bank is based on the various circular
issucd by NRB on various dates till the date of
our review.

Circulars regarding additional provision of
0.3% along with prevailing 1% provision on
pass category loan, recognition of interest
income collected till Bhadra 15 out of interest
income accrued till Ashadh end 2078 etc. has
been verified on sampling basis.

Furthermore, additional funding of 10% and
20% for the revival of business impacted by
COVID-19 based on facility availed was
verified on test basis.

c)

Investment in Loans & Advances:

Investment in loans and advances comprises of
loans and advances provided to the borrowers
via various products of the Bank. The
valuation of aforesaid securities has been done
in compliance with NFRS 9, Carve-Out issued
by the Accounting Standards Board Nepal and
Directive No. 2 & 3 of NRB Unified Directive
2077. The investments are recognized at
Amortized Cost in the financial statements less
impairment losses.

Our audit approach regarding assessment of
investment in loans and advances was done on

risk-based sampling basis.

We verified outstanding impairment status of
loans & advances with reference to the NRB
directives, NFRS and Carve-Out issued for
current year which stated that impairment shall
be done at higher for impairment provision as
per NRB directives or NFRS.

We verified provisioning of the loans and
advances based on ageing on the test check
basis as on 15.07.2021 and the provisions are
adequately made.

d)

Investment Valuation, identification and
impairment:

Investment of the bank comprises of
investment in government bonds, T-bills,
development bonds and investment in quoted
and unquoted securities. The valuation of
aforesaid  securities has been done
incompliance with NFRS 9 and Directive No.
8 of NRB Unified Directive 2077. The
investment in government bonds & T-Bills has
been done on amortized cost and rest have been
valued through FVTOCI.

Given the varieties of treatments
recommended for valuation of investment
based on nature of cash flow, the business
model adopted, complexity of calculation and
significance of amount involved in such
investments, same has been considered as Key
Audit Matter.

Our audit approach regarding investment of
bank is based on NRB Directives & NFRS
issued by the Accounting Standards Board of
Nepal.

For the investment valuation that are done at
amortized cost, we checked the effective
interest rate and amortization schedule on test
basis.

For investment valued through OCI i.e., for
quoted investment, we relied on last transaction
price (LTP) in NEPSE as on 15.07.2021 for fair
value indication and for the unquoted
investment the fair value has been taken at the
rate which determines its nearest fair value
significance.

Further, the income and bonus have been cross
verified from Demat Statement of the bank
wherever applicable.
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S. No. Key Audit Matters Auditor Response

¢) Information Technology: Our audit approach regarding information

Since most of the information of the bank is . ol
digitally stored and transaction are carried out !nformnlmn Technology Guidelines, 2012
digitally/electronically in today’s scenario, we issoed by:NRB.

have considered information technology status | We  verified interest income and expense
of the bank as our Key Audit Matter. booking regarding loan and deposits on the test
basis with the CBS of the bank.

We relied on the IT audit conducted by the
bank.

We verified provisioning of the loans and
advances based on ageing on the test check
basis as on 15.07.2021.

technology of the bank was based upon the

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NAS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement whether caused due to fraud or error, and to issue auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when

it exists.
As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

o Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achicves fair presentation,
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Wf: ha.ve detcrmincd_ to communicate following matters in accordance with the requirements of NRB
Directives, Companies Act, 2063, BAFIA, 2073 and other regulatory requirements: -

e We hav.c obtained all the information and the explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

* Based on our audit, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Bank.

e The Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income, th_e Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Bank.

e Details received from the branch offices of the Bank were adequate for the purpose of our audit.

e The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provisions for possible impairment of assets of the
bank are adequate considering the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

e In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Bank, we have not come across any case where the
Board of Directors or any office bearer of the Bank have acted contrary to the provisions of law,
or committed any misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to the Bank and violated
Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner, as would jeopardize the interest
and security of the Bank, its sharcholders and its depositors.

e The business of the Bank has been conducted satisfactorily and operated within its jurisdiction
and has been functioning as per NRB Directives.

CA. Ranjeev Shrestha
Proprietor

Ranjeev & Associates
Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 211005CA00494aXg7r

Place:; Kathmandu
Date: October 5, 2021
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As on 31st Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)

Amount in NPR
; : ) 020
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 5,091,909,607 4,077,732,638
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 1,489,812,245 1,426,597,704
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 5,547,188 5,610,012
Derivative financial instruments. 4.4 - -
Other trading assets 4.5
Loan and advances to B/FIs 4.6 3,143,294,717 931,095,864
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 33,044,748,460 22,934,397,573
Investment securities 4.8 4,491,150,789 2,929,577,765
Current tax assets 4.9 9,723,151 29,816,417
Investment in susidiaries 4.10 - -
Investment in associates 4.11 - -
Investment property 4.12 - -
Property and equipment 4.13 386,266,949 412,896,127
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14 3,923,285 5,172,408
Deferred tax assets 4.15 33,340,536 28,432,733
Other assets 4.16 137,159,672 117,004,846
Total Assets 47,836,876,600 32,898,334,087
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Instituions 4.17 1,052,292,705 1,120,730,594
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 750,463,771 1,327,845
Derivative financial instruments 4.19 - -
Deposits from customers 4.2 41,797,350,041 28,132,696,849
Borrowing 4.21 - -
Current Tax Liabilities 49 - -
Provisions 4.22 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15 - -
Other liabilities 4.23 524,298,714 337,542,471
Debt securities issued 4.24 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total liabilities 44,124,405,231 29,592,297,758
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Equity
Share capital 4.26 2,736,972,420 2,606,640,400
Share premium
Retained earnings 315,918,741 153,493,256
Reserves 4.27 659,580,208 545,902,673
Total equity attributable to equity holders 3,712,471,369 3,306,036,329
Non-controlling interest - -
Total Equity 3,712,471,369 3,306,036,329
Total Liabilities and Equity 47,836,876,600 32,898,334,087
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 2,029,950,105 1,547,625,305
Net assets value per share 136 127
Prashant Subedi Suyog Shrestha Raju Nath Khanal Lisa Serchan
Head-Accounts and Finance  Chief Executive Officer Director Director
Ganga Sagar Dhakal Naresh Man Tuladhar Sushil Kaji Baniya Achyut Prasad Prasai
Director Director Director Chairman

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 05/10/2021
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Proprietor

Ranjeev & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2078

Amount in NPR
Particulars ‘ ‘ As at ‘ As at
Note
15 July 2021 15 July 2020
Interest income 4.29 3,515,206,323 3,135,051,468
Interest expense 4.30 2,308,685,866 2,084,752,749
Net interest income 1,206,520,457 1,050,298,719
Fee and commission income 4.31 230,376,880 166,786,011
Fee and commission expense 4.32 6,905,955 3,562,695
Net fee and commission income 223,470,925 163,223,316
Net interest, fee and commission income 1,429,991,382 1,213,522,035
Net trading income 4.33 - -
Other operating income 4.34 249,414,446 7,530,734
Total operating income 1,679,405,829 1,221,052,769
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other 4.35 236.067.814 259,481,127
losses
Net operating income 1,443,338,014 961,571,642
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 4.36 490,234,378 366,789,245
Other operating expenses 4.37 282,761,861 249,720,577
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 80,929,402 77,337,181
Operating Profit 589,412,373 267,724,640
Non operating income 4.39 129,070 1,882,713
Non operating expense 4.40 (939,574) (1,297,719)
Profit before income tax 588,601,870 268,309,634
Income tax expense 4.41 178,521,413 77,211,820
Current Tax 185,403,693 79,636,045
Deferred Tax Income / Expenses (6,882,281) (2,424,225)
Profit for the year 410,080,457 191,097,814
Profit attributable to: | | |
Equity holders of the Bank 410,080,457 191,097,814
Non-controlling interest - -
Profit for the year 410,080,457 191,097,814
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 14.98 7.33
Diluted earnings per share 14.98 7.33
Prashant Subedi Suyog Shrestha Raju Nath Khanal Lisa Serchan
Head-Accounts and Finance Chief Executive Officer Director Director
Ganga Sagar Dhakal Naresh Man Tuladhar Sushil Kaji Baniya Achyut Prasad Prasai
Director Director Director Chairman

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 05/10/2021

As per our report of even date

CA. Ranjeev Shrestha
Proprietor
Ranjeev & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 Ashad 2078
Amount in NPR
Particulars As at As at
15 July 2021 ‘ 15 July 2020
Profit for the year 410,080,457 191,097,814
Other comprehensive income
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at 6,581,590 19,026,624
fair value
Gain/(loss) on revalution - -
Atuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans - -
Income tax relating to above items (1,974,477) (5,707,987)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to 4,607,113 13,318,637
profit or loss
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge - -
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of - -
foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items - -
Reclassification of Profit/Loss - -
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified - -
to profit or loss
¢) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted - -
as per equited method
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax 4,607,113 13,318,637
Total comprehensive income for the year 414,687,570 204,416,451
Total comprehensive income attributable to: - -
Equity holders of the Bank 414,687,570 204,416,451
Non-controlling interest - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 414,687,570 204,416,451
Prashant Subedi Suyog Shrestha Raju Nath Khanal Lisa Serchan

Head-Accounts and Finance Chief Executive Officer

Naresh Man Tuladhar
Director

Ganga Sagar Dhakal
Director

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 05/10/2021
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Sushil Kaji Baniya

Director

Achyut Prasad Prasai
Chairman

As per our report of even date

CA. Ranjeev Shrestha
Proprietor
Ranjeev & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
As on 31st Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)

Particulars

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

As at
15 July 2021

Amount in NPR
As at
15 July 2020

Interest received 3,565,514,947 2,985,840,549
Fees and other income received 100,888,513 101,073,067
Dividend received 9,876,252 3,848,966

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

(2,308,361,754)

(2,102,254,187)

Commission and fees paid

(6,905,955)

(3,562,695)

Cash payment to employees

(436,376,034)

(385,579,371)

Other expense paid

(153,368,580)

(233,796,936)

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and
liabilities

771,267,391

365,569,392

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

(63,214,541)

(594,514,463)

Placement with bank and financial institutions 62,825 (3,094,732)
Other trading assets - -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions (2,244,194,889) (506,207,408)

Loans and advances to customers

(10,363,841,855)

(4,035,465,461)

Other assets

(20,154,825)

(39,717,010)

(12,691,343,285)

(5,178,999,074)

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities

Due to bank and financial institutions

(68,437,889)

(2,025,960,994)

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 749,135,926 (2,411,745)
Deposit from customers 13,664,653,192 8,708,863,400
Borrowings - -
Other liabilities - -
14,345,351,229 6,680,490,661
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 2,425,275,335 1,867,060,979
Income taxes paid (165,310,427) (124,628,549)
Net cash flow from operating activities 2,259,967,908 1,742,432,431

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities

(1,554,991,435)

(1,317,980,181)

Receipts from sale of investment securities 239,698,678 -
Purchase of property and equipment (53,186,249) (60,873,759)
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment 462,605 2,912,768
Purchase of intangible assets (452,000) -
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets - -
Purchase of investment properties - -
Receipt from the sale of investment properties - -
Interest received 129,540,042 68,637,277
Dividend received - -
Net cash used in investing activities (1,238,928,359) (1,307,303,895)
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities

Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid (6,859,580) (233,537,297

Interest paid - -

Other receipt/payment - -
Net cash from financing activities (6,859,580) (233,537,297)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,014,176,969 201,591,239

Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan, 01, 2077 4,077,732,638 3,876,141,399

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash

equivalents held i i
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Ashad, 2078 5,091,909,607 4,077,732,638

Prashant Subedi Suyog Shrestha Raju Nath Khanal Lisa Serchan
Head-Accounts and Finance  Chief Executive Officer Director Director
Ganga Sagar Dhakal Naresh Man Tuladhar Sushil Kaji Baniya ~ Achyut Prasad Prasai
Director Director Director Chairman

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 05/10/2021
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CA. Ranjeev Shrestha
Proprietor
Ranjeev & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
As on 31st Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)

(As per NRB Regulation)
Amount in NPR
As at As at
Particulars 15 July 2021 15 July 2020
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 410,080,457 191,097,814
Adjustment: 16,301,656 -

Appropriations:

a. General reserve (82,016,091) (38,219,563)

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund - (260,405)

c. Capital redemption reserve - -

d. Corporate social responsibility fund 1,499,437 (426,714)

e. Employees’' training fund - -

f Fair Value Reserve - -

g. Investment Adjustment Reserve 5,000,000 -

h. Others - -
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 350,865,458 152,191,132
Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (34,646,025) (24,046,357)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - -

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) 4,607,112 22,064,718

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+) - -

e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) (4,907,805) 3,283,762

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - -

g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - -

h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) - -

i. Other (+/-) - -
Distributable profit or (loss) 315,918,741 153,493,256

Prashant Subedi Suyog Shrestha Raju Nath Khanal Lisa Serchan
Head-Accounts and Finance  Chief Executive Officer Director Director
Ganga Sagar Dhakal Naresh Man Tuladhar Sushil Kaji Baniya ~ Achyut Prasad Prasai
Director Director Director Chairman

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 05/10/2021

As per our report of even date

CA. Ranjeev Shrestha
Proprietor
Ranjeev & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 Ashad 2078 (at July 15 2021)

Reporting Entity

The Bank is registered with the Office of Company Registrar as a public limited company and carries
out banking activities in Nepal under the license from Nepal Rastra Bank as Class “Kha” licensed
institution. It’s registered corporate office is at Baluwatar Kathmandu, Nepal. At present Shangri-la
Development Bank Ltd. is one of the largest National Level Development Bank with Branch network
of 97 branches.

The Bank is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and its stock symbol is “SADBL”. The financial year of
the bank is on 15 July 2021 (31 Ashad 2078)

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board
(ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the
format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2077.

The financial statements comprise of the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Profit or
Loss and the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown in a single statement, the Statement
of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.

2.1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors in
accordance with Company Act 2063, Bank and Financial Institution Act 2073, Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and
pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in the format issued
by Nepal Rastra Bank in Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2077.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except otherwise stated.
2.2. Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

The Bank has adopted the NFRS for the preparation of financial statements, pronounced by ASB
with effect from fiscal year 2017/18 (2074.75).

The approval of financial statements accompanied notes to the financial statements have been
adopted by the Board of Directors in its 277" Board Meeting held on October 5, 2021 and the
Board acknowledges the responsibility of preparation of financial statements of the Bank. The
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approved financial statements have been recommended for approval by the shareholders in the
17" Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

The Board of Directors may decide to amend the annual accounts as long as these are not adopted
by the general meeting of the shareholders. The general meeting of shareholders may decide not
to adopt the annual accounts but may not amend these.

Responsibility For Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible for the preparation of financial statements of
the Bank which reflects a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the
Bank. The board is of the view that the financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with the prevailing financial reporting standards, regulations of the Nepal Rastra Bank and the
requirements of the Companies Act.

The Board of Directors acknowledges their responsibility for financial statements as set out in
the ‘Statement of Director’s Responsibility’ and in the certification on the Statement of Financial
Position.

These financial statements include the following components:

» Statement of Financial Position [SoFP] providing the information on the financial position
of the Bank as at the end of the reporting period;

» Statement of Profit or Loss [SoPL] and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income [SoCI]
providing the information on the financial performance of the Bank for the reporting period;

» Statement of Changes in Equity [SoCE] reporting all changes in the shareholders’ funds
during the reporting period of the Bank;

» Statement of Cash Flows [SoCF] providing the information to the users, on the ability of the
Bank to generate cash and cash equivalents and utilization of those cash flows; and

» Notes to the financial statements comprising significant accounting policies, other
disclosures and other explanatory information relevant to the study of financial statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Bank’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee
except where indicated otherwise.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgement

The Bank, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Bank is required to make judgements in
respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be
followed could materially affect the financial statements.
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The NFRS requires the Bank to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets,
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the
financial statements.

The Bank applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements and such
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and are applied
prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes
wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of
accounting estimates, if any.

Going Concern

The management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore,
the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon
the bank's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, financial statements of the bank
continue to be prepared on a going concern basis.

Change in Accounting Policies

The Bank has prepared the opening statement of financial position as per Nepal Financial
Reporting Standard (NFRS) as at 16 July 2016 (the transition date) by recognizing all assets and
liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS, not recognizing the items of assets or liabilities
which are not permitted by NFRS, by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to NFRS as
required by NFRS and applying NFRS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities.

Reporting Pronouncements

The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB
as effective on September 13, 2013. The NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB).

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal has pronounced implementation of NFRS.
Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements for the year ended July 15, 2021 are
prepared in accordance with NFRS. Details of carve out provided are as follows.

2.7.1 Impairment

In para 58 of NAS 39 Financial Instrument Recognition and Measurement, an entity
shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the
entity shall apply Incurred Loss Model as per para 63 of NAS 39; to determine the amount
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of any impairment loss unless the entity is bank or financial institutions registered as per
Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073.

Such entities shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount
derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount
determined as per para 63 of NAS 39; and shall apply para 63 of NAS 39 to measure the
impairment loss on financial assets other than loan and advances.

The entity shall disclose the impairment loss as per this carve-out and the amount of
impairment loss determined as per paragraph 63.

2.7.2 Impracticability To Determine Interest Income On Amortised Cost

In para AG 93 of NAS 39, once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter
recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Interest income shall be calculated by applying effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is
written off either partially or fully.

2.7.3 Impracticability To Determine Transaction Cost Of All Previous Years Which Is The
Part Of Effective Interest Rate

In para 9, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call
and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all
fees and points paid or received, unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine
reliably, between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate
(see NAS 18 Revenue), transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. There is a
presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial
instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible
to estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group
of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

2.7.4 NAS 28 — “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”

Carve out from the requirement for a parent company to account for an associate in its
consolidated financial statements using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances as specified in para 35 of NAS 28 unless it is
impracticable to do so. As a result of this alternative treatment, associates are allowed to
be presented in the consolidated financial statements without adjustments to the associate’s
financial statements which are otherwise required to achieve consistency in accounting
policies between the Group entities and associates.
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Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of
the discounting is material.

Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available, and/or it is impracticable to develop
such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

Significant Accounting Policies

The bank has applied the accounting policies set out below consistently to all periods presented in the
accompanying financial statements unless specifically stated otherwise.

3.1.

3.2

3.3.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following
material items in the Statement of Financial Position:

» Investment Securities are measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI).

» Liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value of the defined
benefit obligation less the net total of the plan assets plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less
unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value
and carried at amortised cost.

The cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement include cash in hand,
balances with banks, money at call and money market funds and financial assets with original
maturity less than 3 months from the date of acquisition.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
a. Recognition

The bank recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and
financial liabilities, other than those carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial
assets and financial liabilities which are carried at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL), are charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Classification

The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value
on the basis of business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

I

II.

I11.

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortisation of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, if any is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial Assets Measured At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both,
selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income (SOCI).

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

The bank classifies the financials assets as fair value through profit or loss if they are held
for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Any other financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or FVTOCI, is classified
as FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified under two categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

I

I1.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost directly attributable to the
acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes
in fair value is recognized at profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost:

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified
as subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.
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a. De-recognition

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

b. Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The bank follows three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy that are described below:
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly
observable or valuations of quoted for similar instrument in active markets or quoted prices
for identical or similar instrument in inactive markets; and

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

Investment in Unquoted Equity Instrument are carried at cost as the market price of such
shares could not be ascertained with certainty at the reporting date.

c¢. Impairment

The Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to
assess whether an impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
The management’s judgement is extensively used in the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are
based on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results may differ,
resulting in future changes to the provisions made.

The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets evaluated individually for
impairment and is based on Management’s best estimate of the present value of the future
cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, Management
makes judgments about a borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value of any
underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits and the workout strategy
and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable.

Individual assessment of impairment of exposures means establishing whether objective
evidence of impairment exists, estimation of the present value of future cash flows, and
calculation of the value of impairment for each individual receivable from the borrower
included in this assessment.
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The bank has considered all loans and advances above NPR 5 million and non-performing
loan as per NRB Directive for individual assessment of impairment. The bank determines,
for each individual loan to be assessed for individual impairment, whether they expect to
collect their receivables from expected future cash flows (going concern) or from collateral
realization (gone concern). If a bank identifies objective evidence of impairment, the bank
indicates, at single debtor level, the most realistic sources of repayment (collection
approach/strategy) based on all available information regarding such borrower’s financial
position and performances. The bank assesses whether collection will be made from the
borrower's expected future operating cash flows (borrower continues to perform business
activities — going concern) or on the basis of collateral enforcement and realization
(expectation that the borrower ceases to exist — gone concern). In both cases, bank uses
conservative assumptions relating to the estimation of the expected cash flows, taking into
account current economic conditions and the Bank’s own economic forecasts.

A collective impairment provision is established for:

1.

ii.

VVVVVVVVVVVVVYVYYVYY

Groups of homogeneous loans and advances and investment securities which are held-to-
maturity, that are not considered individually significant; and

Groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually
impaired.

For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment, bank has categorized assets into
following broad products as follows:

Deprived Sector Loan
Wholesale Lending
Home Loan

Real Estate Loan
Education Loan

Hire Purchase Loan
Personal Loan

Loan Against FDR
Gold And Silver Loan
Tourism Loan
Foreign Employment Loan
Business Loan
Agricultural Loan
Margin Lending
Industry Loan
Guarantee Loan

The collective provision for groups of homogeneous loans is established using statistical
methods based on historical loss rate experience, Loss Given Default (LGD) and
Probability of Default (PD) computed using the statistical analysis of historical data on
delinquency to estimate the amount of loss for each class of portfolio selected on the basis
of its product, risk factor, collateral coverage, exposure group etc. Management applies
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judgement to ensure that the estimate of loss arrived at, on the basis of historical
information is appropriately adjusted to reflect the economic conditions and portfolio
factors as at the reporting date. The loss rates are regularly reviewed against actual loss
experience.

The Bank has opted to apply carve out on impairment of loans and advances. Accordingly,
individual and collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared
with the impairment provision required under NRB Directive No. 2, higher of the amount
derived from these measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and advances.

Details of individual and collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is
compared with the impairment provision required under NRB Directive No. 2 are given

below:
Impairment as per NFRS
Amount in NPR
As at 15 July 2021 As at 15 July 2020
Individual Impairment 33,495,324.89 19,074,178.51
Collective Impairment 124,421,089.47 76,389,267.19
Total 157,916,414.37 95,463,445.70
Impairment as per NRB Directive No.2
Amount in NPR
As at 15 July 2021 As at 15 July 2020
Pass Loan Provision 418,981,528.81 193,976,366.47
Watchlist Loan Provision 112,053,330.74 214,951,683.58
Sub-Standard Loan Provision 53,767,972.21 29,718,853.25
Doubtful Loan Provision 101,047,727.13 54,990,452.77
Loss Loan Provision 81,615,015.47 41,363,061.52
Total 767,465,574.36 535,000,417.58

3.4. Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognised on trade date, when the bank enters
into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally derecognised when sold.
They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs taken to Statement of Profit or
Loss. Subsequent changes in their fair values are recognised Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Derivative Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward
foreign exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative
financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are
subsequently re-measured to fair value at each reporting date. The bank does not have any
derivative instrument during the reporting period.

Property & Equipment

All property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Computer and Accessories 5
Furniture and Fixtures 7
Office Equipment 7
Vehicles 5
Lease-hold Properties 10

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
Statement of Financial Position date. The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to
be in use is considered not material.

Assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure.
Intangible Assets

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are
capitalised where it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its

cost. Computer software costs are amortised over the period of 5 years in Straight Line method
(SLM).

Costs associated with maintaining software are recognised as an expense as incurred.

45



46

3.8.

3.9.

Aifdretr Soiciudiec db o1

Shangri-la Development Bank Ltd.

17t Annual Report 2077/78

cerfier PEeeTST SnETe

(ATT T ShaE @ AR SIS AT FEAT)

Investment Property

Investment properties are land or building or both other than those classified as property and
equipment under NAS 16 — “Property, Plant and Equipment”; and assets classified as non-
current assets held for sale under NFRS 5 — “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”. Land and Building acquired as non-banking assets are recognised
as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently
all investment properties are reported at fair value with any gains or losses in fair value reported
in the Statement of Profit or Loss as they arise. No depreciation is charged in investment
property as they are not intended for the owner-occupied use.

Income Tax
Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.
Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to
the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of the
current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting
date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. Details of Current tax are
presented in Schedule 4.41.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax
purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets
will be realised or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively
enacted, by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise
in the same tax reporting group and relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority,
and when the group has a legal right to offset. Details of Deferred tax are presented in Schedule
4.15.
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Deposit, Debts Securities Issued and Subordinated Liabilities
i. Deposits

The Bank accepts deposits from its customers under account, current, term deposits and
margin accounts which allows money to be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder.
These transactions are recorded on the bank’s books, and the resulting balance is recorded
as a liability for the Bank and represents the amount owed by the Bank to the customer.

ii. Debt Securities Issued

It includes debentures, bonds or other debt securities issued by the Bank. Deposits, debt
securities issued, and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus
incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost
using the effective interest method, except where the Group designates liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. However, debentures issued by the bank are subordinate to the
deposits from customer.

iii. Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are
subordinate to the claims of depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors. The bank
does not have any of such subordinated liabilities.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Bank recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the Bank has a present constructive
or legal obligation that can be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Bank from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the
contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
Ifit is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation,
the provision is reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements.
However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow
of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period in
which the change occurs. Details of Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
are presented in Schedule 4.28.
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3.12. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Bank and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria
must also be met before revenue is recognised.

a. Interest Income

Interest Income include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except
on those investment securities measured at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalent, due from Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff etc.

Interest income on loans and advances is recognized on amortised principal which is
nearer to the effective interest method suggested by NFRS. The adoption of effective
interest method is not possible due to constraints of time, effort and cost in short term
compared to the benefits it provides. Benefit of carve out has been applied to this effect.
Interest of loans and advances which are significantly impaired are not recognized.
Furthermore, the interest income has not been recognized where the loan's contractual
payments of principal/and or interest are more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective of
the net realizable value of the collateral as guided by the guidelines issued by NRB.

Interest income on government bond, treasury bills and bank balances are recognized
under effective interest method.

b. Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has
been provided or significant act performed. Service Fee Income/Expenses are recognized
on accrual basis unless it is impracticable to recognize as allowed through carve-out on
NFRS.

c¢. Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the Bank’s right to receive the payment is
established, which is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

d. Net Trading Income

Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and the related
interest income or expense and dividends, for financial assets and financial liabilities held
for trading.

3.13. Interest Expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss using effective interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are
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considered to be incidental to the Bank’s trading operations and are presented together with all
other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

3.14. Employee Benefits

I1.

a. Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount
expected to be paid under bonus required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably
under short term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period):

»  wages, salaries and social security contributions,

»  paid annual leave and paid sick leave,

»  profit-sharing and bonuses and non-monetary benefits

Post-Employment Benefits
Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings;
Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which a Bank pays
fixed contribution into a separate Bank (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior periods, as defined
in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

Provident Fund

Bank deduct ten percent of the basic remuneration of each labour, add cent percent to that
amount and deposit the total amount for the purpose of provident fund. The above expenses
are identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’ as defined in Nepal
Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

Bank have deposited NPR 17,291,804 as expense in the Provident Fund during the FY
2077.78.

Gratuity

Bank has followed Defined Contribution Plan dated from 2075/10/01. Provision for
Gratuity has been deposited as per the Labor Act 2074. Bank has followed following rate
to deposit the gratuity:
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»  For the employee who have worked first 15 years or less than that, gratuity is
provided at 8.33% of the basic remuneration of each month.

»  For the employee who have worked above 15 years and upto 20 years, gratuity is
provided at 12.50% of the basic remuneration of each month

»  For the employee who have worked above 20 years, gratuity is provided at 16.67%
of the basic remuneration of each month

Bank has deposited NPR 14,453,431 for gratuity expense during the FY 2077.78.
a. Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The bank’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine
its present value.

Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The
discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds, that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the bank’s obligation and that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

b. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Bank is demonstrably
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either
terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits
as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for
voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if the Bank has made an offer of
voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after
the reporting date, then they are discounted to their present value.

Bank has provided NPR 16,700,369 under Voluntary Retirement Service during the FY
2077.78.

3.15. Leases

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term unless either:

» Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit
even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or
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» The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the
lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

Majority of lease agreements entered by the Banks are with the clause of normal increment of
5%-15% p.a. which the management assumes are in line with the lessor’s expected inflationary
cost.

Bank has implemented Operating lease and created provision for Operating Lease liability of
NPR 27,837,064.43 upto FY 2077.78.

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR). Transactions in foreign
currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange at the Statement of Financial Position
date.

Share Capital and Reserves

Equity is the residual interest in the total assets of the Bank after deducting all of its liability.
Shares are classified as equity when the Bank has an unconditional right to avoid delivery of
cash or another financial asset, that is, when the dividend and repayment of capital are at the
sole and absolute discretion of the Bank and there is no contractual obligation whatsoever to
that effect.

Reserves are the allocation out of profit or retained earnings. These are created as statutory
requirement, accounting standard requirement and bank’s own requirement. Details of Share
Capital and Reserves are provided in Schedule 4.26 and 4.27.

Earnings per Share (EPS) and Diluted EPS

Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. The number
of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant period as required
by NAS 33 - Earnings per Share.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss attributable to the ordinary
equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The bank’s earnings per share has increased from Rs.7.33 to Rs.14.98 in current fiscal year due
to the increase in business volume and profitability.
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Details of calculation of Earnings per share is as follows:

Amount (NPR)

As at 15 July 2021 | _As at 15 July 2020

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 410,080,457.04 191,097,813.72
Number of ordinary shares as at year end 27,369,724.20 26,066,404.00
Basic earnings per equity share 14.98 7.33
Diluted earnings per share 14.98 7.33

Proposed Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Bank has proposed the following dividend by passing the
resolution in the 277" Board Meeting, held on October 5, 2021 for the financial year 2077.78.
The payment is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Bank.

The amount of the dividend proposed in current year and previous year is as follows:

As at 15 July 2021 As at 15 July 2020

Stock Dividend 10% 273,697,242 5% 130,332,020

Cash Dividend 0.5263% 14,405,118 | 0.2632% 6,859,580

Total 10.5263% 288,102,360 | 5.2632% 137,191,600
Segment Reporting

The Bank’s operating segments are organized and managed separately through the respective
department/business managers according to the nature of products and services provided with
each segment representing a strategic business unit. Segment report include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis

The bank has identified three segments namely: Core Banking, Treasury and Digital Banking
for the segment reporting. Details are provided in Notes 5.4
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

Additional Disclosure
A. Impact of COVID 19

Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) has taken measures to alleviate the impact of the pandemic which includes the
deferment in instalment and interest collection by six, nine and twelve months as the case may be and
relaxation in loans and advances classification norms among other things.

To revive the business and provide the financial relief to the customers, Shangri-la Development Bank Ltd.
has provided the additional working capital to the COVID impacted customers, deferred the instalment and
interest collection and extended the discount on interest due as per NRB Circular.

Pursuant to the requirement of NRB Circular No: 1/078/79 related to AGM Clearance and Dividend
Distribution Procedure of FY 2077.78, following disclosure are provided.

Table No. 1: Forbearance/relaxation

As of Ashad end 2078

Particulars No. of Amount
Customers (NPR)

Accrued Interest Received after Asadh end 2078 till 15 Bhadra 13,839 77,164,839.32
2078

Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan 18,723 96,688,045.11
Portfolio

Extension of moratorium period of loan provided to Industry or N.A. N.A.
Project under construction

Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision 335 820,251,511.93
Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to COVID 57 65,030,128.26
affected borrowers

Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected N.A. N.A.
borrowers

Expiry Date of Additional 20% Working Capital Loan (COVID 36 33,359,766.40
Loan) extended for up to 1 year with 5% provisioning

Expiry Date of Additional 10% Term Loan (COVID Loan) N.A. N.A.
extended for up to 1 year with 5% provisioning

Time Extension provided for repayment of Principal and Interest | Principal — 113 8,804,284.54
for up to two years as per clause 41 of NRB Directives 2 Interest - 69 11,202,792.28

Table No. 2 Refinance and Business Continuity

As of Ashad end 2078

Refinance Loan 332 750,463,771.02
Business Continuity Loan N.A. N.A.
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Table No. 3 Subsidized Loan

‘ Subsidized Loan

1,282
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As of Ashad end 2078
No. of Customers Amount (NPR)

‘ 1,313,810,215.50 ‘

Bank has disbursed NPR 36,293,876,868.83 as Loans and Advances as on the reporting period and out of
those insured loan is NPR 1,762,937,506.25. Details of loan with classification are as follows:

Amount in NPR
Percent

Pass (Other than Restructured/ | 1.30% | 1,739,341,920.27 | 31,796,989,285.64 | 33,536,331,205.91
Rescheduled Covid Related)
Pass (Restructured/ Rescheduled | 5.00% - 801,602,360.52 801,602,360.52
Covid Related)
Watch List 5.00% 17,225,732.18 | 1,435,157,821.32 | 1,452,383,553.50
Rescheduled/Restructured 12.50% - - -
Substandard 25.00% 2,934,886.75 214,338,167.14 217,273,053.89
Doubtful 50.00% 1,721,686.75 201,665,032.57 203,386,719.32
Bad 100.00% 1,713,280.30 81,186,695.39 82,899,975.69
Total Loan 1,762,937,506.25 | 34,530,939,362.58 | 36,293,876,868.83

Interest Capitalization of Loan

Interest capitalized related to Loans disbursed to the National prioritized sector as on the reporting period

are as follows:

Amount in NPR
Outstanding Loan Interest Capitalized
| Yambaling Hydro Power Pvt. Ltd. | 119,125,723.09 | 5,274,326.69 |
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Amount in NPR
Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Cash In Hand 710,651,454 668,557,778
Balances with BFIs 5,627,094 3,006,407
Money at Call and Short Notice 3,120,508,074 3,157,030,923
Other 1,255,122,985 249,137,530
Total 5,091,909,607 4,077,732,638

The fair value of cash and cash equivalent is its carrying value. Cash at vault is adequately insured for
physical and financial risks. The amount of cash at vault is maintained on the basis of the liquidity
and business requirements. Balance with BFIs includes balance maintained at various banks and
financial institutions. Other items on cash and cash equivalents includes interbank placements and

treasury bills with maturity above 7 days and below 3 months.

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars
Statutory Balances with NRB

| As at 15 July 2021
1,471,170,389

Amount in NPR
| As at 15 July 2020
1,426.477,154

Securities purchased under Resale Agreement

Other deposit and receivable from NRB

18,641,856

120,550

Total

1,489,812,245

1,426,597,704

The fair value of balance with the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) is its carrying amount itself. Balance
with the NRB is principally maintained as a part of the regulatory cash reserve ratio required by the
NRB. Other deposit and receivable from NRB includes receivable from NRB for interest subsidy.

4.3 Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions

Amount in NPR
Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Placement with Domestic B/FIs 5,547,188 5,610,012
Placement with Foreign B/FIs - -
Less: Allowances for Impairment - -
Total 5,547,188 5,610,012

Placement with Banks and Financial Institution includes the placements with domestic as well as
foreign bank and financial institutions with original maturities of more than three months from the
acquisition date. Placement with domestic B/FIs includes Fixed Deposit in USD with Sunrise Bank
Limited with original maturities of 6 months of USD 23,536.81 and 1 Year of USD 23,000.
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.4 Derivative financial instruments

Amount in NPR

Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Held for Trading - -
Interest Rate Swap - -
Currency Swap - -
Forward exchange Contract. - -
Others - -
Held for risk management - -
Interest Rate Swap - -
Currency Swap - -
Forward exchange Contract - -
Others - -
Total - -

As of 31 Ashad 2078 the bank does not have placement with bank and financial institutions.

4.5 Other Trading Assets
Amount in NPR

Particulars | Asat15July2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Tresury bills

Government Bonds - -
NRB Bonds - -
Domestic Corporate bonds - -
Equity
Other - -
Total - -
Pledged - -

Non-Pledged - -

Trading assets are those assets that the bank has acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term,
or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit are presented under this
head.
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

Loan and Advances to BFIs

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Loans to microfinance institutions 3,184,695,762 940,500,873
Other - -
Less: Allowances for impairment (41,401,045) (9,405,009)
3,143,294,717 931,095,864

Impairment allowance on Loans and advances to BFIs have been considered as per NRB Directive.

Specific Allowance for Impairment

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Balance at Shrawan 1 9,405,009 4,342,935
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year 31,996,036 5,062,074
Recoveries/reversal - -
Amount written off - -
Balances at Ashad end 41,401,045 9,405,009

No individual loans to banks and micro finance has terms and conditions that significantly affect
the amount, timing or certainty of consolidated cash flows of the Bank. Risks associated with these

assets are regularly assessed. These are interest bearing advances and the income on these assets is

credited to Statement of Profit or Loss under interest income.

Loans and advances to customers

Particulars

| As at 15 July 2021

Amount in NPR

| As at 15 July 2020

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 33,770,812,989 23,459,992,982
Less: Impairment allowances
Individual impairment (236,430,715) (126,072,368)
Collective impairment (489,633,815) (399,523,041)
Net amount 33,044,748,460 22,934,397,573
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - -
Total 33,044,748,460 22,934,397,573

Above impairment is higher of Impairment as per NRB Directive no.2 or as per Para 63 of NAS 39.
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances- By Product

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Product
Term loans 11,020,417,809 8,635,840,980
Overdraft 7,132,490,843 5,547,686,344

Trust receipt/Import loans

Demand and other working capital loans

788,126,197

416,283,742

Personal residential loans

5,137,472,411

3,283,623,903

Real estate loans

1,912,131,704

1,185,614,389

Margin lending loans 1,271,323,222 401,932,633
Hire purchase loans 2,826,760,553 2,172,417,299
Deprived sector loans 2,154,160,805 843,207,493
Bills purchased -
Staff loans 476,398,474 268,357,852
Other 866,297,563 499,161,924
Sub total 33,585,579,581 23,254,126,558
Interest receivable 185,233,408 237,357,136
Grand total 33,770,812,989 23,491,483,694
4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advances- By Currency

Amount in NPR

Particulars
Nepalese rupee

| As at 15 July 2021
33,770,812,989

| As at 15 July 2020
23,491,483,694

Indian rupee

USD

GBP

Euro

JPY

Chinese Yuan

Other

Total

33,770,812,989

23,491,483,694
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.7.3 Analysis of loan and advances- By Collateral

Particulars
Secured

| As at 15 July 2021

Amount in NPR

| As at 15 July 2020

Movable / Immovable assets

29,568,595,164

22,462,977,616

Gold and silver 142,911,179 961,596
Guarantee of domestic B/Fis 33,575,028 4,143,735
Government Guarantee - 3,363,294
Guarantee of international rated bank - -
Export document - -
Fixed Deposit receipts 299,718,207 131,053,677
Government securities / bonds Counter guarantee - -
Counter guarantee - -
Personal guarantee 1,544,547,777 217,518,103
Other 2,181,465,633 671,465,674
Subtotal 33,770,812,989 23,491,483,694
Unsecured - -
Grand Total 33,770,812,989 23,491,483,694

4.7.4 Allowances for Impairment

Particulars
Specific allowances for impairment

| As at 15 July 2021

Amount in NPR

| As at 15 July 2020

Balance at Shrawan 1

126,072,368

69,183,832

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year

Recoveries/reversal during the year

110,358,347

56,888,535

Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

Other movement

Balance at Ashad end

236,430,715

126,072,368

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1

399,523,041

204,773,490

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year

90,110,773

194,749,551

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

Other movement

Balance at Ashad end

489,633,815

399,523,041

Total allowances for impairment

726,064,529

525,595,409
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.8 Investment Securities
Amount in NPR

Particulars | Asat 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Investment securities measured at amortized cost 3,925,264,403 2,480,588,693
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 565,886,387 448,989,072
Total 4,491,150,789 2,929,577,765

Investment made by the Bank in financial instruments has been presented under this account head in
two categories i.e. investment securities measured at amortized cost and investment in equity
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Investment other than those measured
at amortized cost is measured at fair value and changes in fair value has been recognized in other
comprehensive income. Where income from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares,
the valuation of investment is made by increasing the number of shares without changing in the cost
of investment. Treasury Bills with orginal maturity up to 3 months have been classified under cash

and cash equivalent.

4.8.1 Investment Securities Measured at Amortized Cost

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Debt securities -
Government bonds 2,444,703,678 1,596,388,189
Government treasury bills 1,480,560,725 884,200,504
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - -
Other - -
Less: specific allowances for impairment - -
Total 3,925,264,403 2,480,588,693
4.8.2 Investment Securities Measured Through Other Comprehensive Income
Amount in NPR
Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities 531,381,487 385,650,872
Unquoted equity securities 34,504,900 63,338,200
Total 565,886,387 448,989,072
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Amount in NPR
Cost Price Fair Value Cost Price Fair Value
Investment in listed Share
1 Sunrise Bluechip Fund 46,050,260 46,787,064
4,605,026 Kitta Per share Rs. 10
2 Sanima Large Cap Fund 10,000,000 10,500,000
1,000,000 kitta per share Rs .10
3 Kumari Equity Fund 10,000,000 10,500,000
1,000,000 kitta per share Rs .10
4 prabhu select fund 14,681,000 14,886,534
1,468,100 kitta per share Rs .10
5 NIBL Samriddhi Fund 2 36,721,230 39,695,650
3,672,123 kitta per share Rs .10
6 NIBL Sahabhagita Fund 2,500,000 4,362,500
250,000 kitta per share Rs .10
7 NIC Asia Dyanamic Debt Fund 6,648,200 7,479,225
664,820 kitta per share Rs .10
8 NMB Hybrid Fund 7,887,010 7,492,660
788,701 kitta per share Rs.10
9 |Laxmi Equity Fund 11,699,160 10,260,163
1,169,916 kitta per share Rs.10
10 |Global IME Samunnat Scheme 7,119,870 6,108,848
711,987 kitta per share Rs.10
11 |[Nabil Mutual Fund Equity 11,265,040 10,510,282
1,126,504 kitta per share Rs. 10
12 [Siddhartha Equity Fund 9,677,480 9,677,480
967,748 kitta per share Rs.10
13 [Sanima Equity Fund 5,000,000 4,965,000
500,000 kitta per share Rs.10
14 [CITIZEN Mutual Fund 5,000,000 5,030,000
500,000 kitta per share Rs.10
15 |NIC Asia Equity Fund 5,000,000 5,095,000
500,000 kitta per share Rs.10
16 |Butwal Power Company Ltd 10,020,000 8,687,800
24,200 kitta per share Rs. 100
17 |Nabil Balanced Fund II 10,000,000 9,900,000
1,000,000 kitta per share Rs.10
18 |NIC Asia Balanced Fund 5,000,000 5,190,000
500,000 kitta per share Rs.10
19 [National Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 10,987,786 6,400,216
9,668 kitta per share Rs.100
20 | Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 26,164,973 23,028,000 12,883,856 14,064,120
12,000 kitta per share Rs .100
21 | Life Insurance Co. Nepal 16,182,454 16,394,000 8,490,963 6,540,940
7,000 kitta per share Rs .100
22 Neco Insurance Co. Ltd. 5,947,474 4,893,240
3,630 kitta per share Rs .100
23 | Prime Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 269,387 333,900
350 kitta per share Rs .100
24 | Surya Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 18,653,035 18,440,000
20,000 kitta per share Rs .100
25 Premier Insurance Company 4,989,964 4,680,000 5,764,015 5,308,072
4,000 kitta per share Rs .100
26 | Siddhartha Insurance Ltd. 5,500 257,094 5,500 141,520
243 kitta per share Rs .100
27 [Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd. 4,307,043 2,250,971
2,209 kitta per share Rs .100
29 | Ngadi Group Power Ltd. 2,300 15,390 2,300 2,875
27 kitta per share Rs .100
30 [Jalabidyut Lagani tatha Bikas Co. Ltd. 151,200 221,179
1,663 kitta per share Rs .100
31 | Arun Kabeli Power Ltd. 29,500 147,414 29,500 34,220
311 kitta per share Rs.100
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Amount in NPR
Particulars As at 15 July 2021 As at 15 July 2020
Cost Price Fair Value Cost Price Fair Value
32 | Ridi Hydro. Development Company Ltd. 3,600 23,040 3,600 3,205
40 kitta per share Rs .100
33 | United Modi Hydropower Ltd. 33,700 135,811 33,700 35,048
337 kitta per share Rs .100
34 | Swabalamban Bikas Bank Limited 22,237,860 20,239,800 11,085,085 11,535,948
12,200 kitta per share Rs .100
35 | Chhimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank Limited 14,328,110 13,904,000 5,989,796 8,397,360
8,000 kitta per share Rs .100
36 | Nirdhan Uthan Bikash Bank 14,059,533 12,145,600 4,003,850 3,890,292
7,591 kitta per share Rs .100
37 |Sana Kishan Bikash Bank Ltd 4,796,333 8,276,962
5,000 kitta per share Rs .100
38 |Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 2,140,667 3,121,930
3,605 kitta per share Rs .100
39 | Nerude Laghubita Bikas Bank Ltd. 12,032,366 11,200,000
7,000 kitta per share Rs .100
40 | Citizen Investment Trust 41,457,864 37,475,885
10,735 kitta per share Rs .100
41 | Soaltee Hotel Limited 2,500,898 2,507,340 2,500,898 1,473,780
9,570 kitta per share Rs .100
42 [NLG Insurance Company 5,505,530 3,285,000
5,000 kitta per share Rs .100
43 | Prabhu Life Insurance 177,750,000 177,750,000 177,750,000 177,750,000
1,777,500 kitta per share Rs .100
44 | General Insurance Copany 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000
300,000 kitta per share Rs .100
45 | Sadhana Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. (Prom.) 20,000,000 23,600,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
236,000 kitta per share Rs .100
Sub-Total 533,249,208 531,381,487 394,100,183 385,650,872
Investment in Unlisted Share
1 Nepal Clearing House Limited 925,000 1,838,200 925,000 1,838,200
18,382 kitta per share Rs .100
2 Nepal Electronic Payment System 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
10,000 kitta per share Rs .100
3 Smart Choice Technologies Ltd. 26,666,700 26,666,700
266,667 kitta per share Rs .100
4 NIC Asia Select 30 5,000,000 5,000,000
500,000 kitta per share Rs .10
5 |Citizens Mutual Fund -II 3,000,000 3,000,000
300,000 kitta per share Rs .10
6 |NIBL Sahabhagita 2,500,000 2,500,000
250,000 kitta per share Rs .10
7 |Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme-2 5,000,000 5,000,000
500,000 kitta per share Rs .10
8 [NMB 50 Mutual Fund 20,000,000 20,000,000
2,000,000 kitta per share Rs .10
9  |Sunrise First Mutual Fund 30,000,000 30,000,000
3,000,000 kitta per share Rs .10
Sub-Total 33,591,700 34,504,900 62,425,000 63,338,200
Total 566,840,908 565,886,387 456,525,183 448,989,072
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4.9 Current Tax Assets

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat 15 July 2020

Current income tax assets 195,126,844 109,452,462
Current tax of prior periods - -
Total Current Tax Assets 195,126,844 109,452,462
Current income tax liabilities 185,403,693 79,636,045
Current tax of prior periods - -
Total Current Tax Liabilites 185,403,693 79,636,045
Total (Current Assets - Current Liabilities) 9,723,151 29,816,417

Current Tax Assets includes advance income tax paid by the Bank under self assessment tax returns
filed as per the Income Tax Act 2058 and tax deducted at source (TDS) on behalf of the Bank.
Simialrly, the current income tax liabilities includes the tax payable to the Government computed as
per the provision of the Income Tax Act 2058.

4.10 Investment in subsidiaries

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat 15 July 2020
Investment in quoted subsidiaries -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries -
Total Investment - -
Less: Impairmment
Net Carrying Amount - -
4.10.1 Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
Amount in NPR

Pa ] AS 3 | AS 3 02(
Cost Fair Value| Cost Fair Value

Amount in NPR
P g ; AS 2 | AS 2 020
Cost Fair Value| Cost Fair Value
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.10.3 Information relating to subsidiaries of the bank
Amount in NPR

As at 15 July 2021 As at 15 July 2020

4.10.4 Non Controlling Interest of the subsidiaries
Amount in NPR

Particulars | As at 15 July 2021

Equity interest held by NCI (%)

Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balance of NCI as on Ashad end
Dividend paid to NCI

Particulars | As at 15 July 2020

Equity interest held by NCI (%)

Profit/(loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated balance of NCI as on Ashad end
Dividend paid to NCI

4.11 Investment in Associates

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat15 July 2020
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Investment in quoted associates - - - -
Investment in unquoted associates - - - -
Total Investment - - - -
Less Impairmment - - - -
Net Carrying amount - - - -
The Bank does not have any associates as on the reporting date.
4.11.1 Investment in quoted associates
Amount in NPR
Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each - - - -
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each -
Total - -
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4.11.2 Investment in Unquoted associates
Amount in NPR

P ) AS 3 | AS 3 02()
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........................................... Ltd. - - - -
Total - - - -

As at 15 July 2021 As at 15 July 2020

Amount in NPR
As at 15 July 2021 As at 15 July 2020

4.12 Investment Properties
Amount in NPR

Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Sharwan 1 - -

Addition/disposal during the year - -

Net changes in fair value during the year - -

Adjustment/transfer - -

Net amount - -

Investment properties measured at cost
Balance as on Sharwan 1, - -

Addition/disposal during the year - -

Net changes in fair value during the year - -

Adjustment/transfer - -

Net amount - -
Total - -

The Bank does not have any investment properties as on the reporting date.

65



17th Annual Report 2077/78

Shangri-la Development Bank Ltd.

(AUT T ShaE @ AR S AT AT

LOL'9PF061  [STH'96E°01E  |L96'SLL'ETT 8SOIEY Ty |169°TIT9T  [IL9°LIOLT  |8€0°906°001 LLOT PUd Peysy Je duefeg
©) i - - - Jausnipy
668°68€T 7LS'8EE6 1€6°001°T €07°9S V00'CETL | 9EV'8Y6 - - - s[esodsi(
- - - - - Jed &y Jog Judunreduwy
6EV'6SP'PE | 10T°66€°SL | L86'1TT'ST VETOPL'6 171°069°L | €88°0¥E'S 9L6'S0¥'LT - - | Tea oyy 1oy aGrey) uoneoardo
89T°LLEBST | 86L°SECHPT | T16°LS9°68 LT0'LPL'TE | PLS'SSL'ST | STT'SLYTT | T90°00S°EL 9,07 PU9 PeYSY Je duefeg
- Juomwdun pun uoyv1d2.4dap papmmnIdy
SP6'SE0'TLY  [8TS'OP8LIL  [THI‘9TH'EST 195°696°c6  (8VT'T6H09  |0€0°9LT'LY  |PPSTRYTIE |- - 8L0T Pud peysy je duejeq
R R - - - - - - - wounsnpy
TEL'00T'OT | €LTTEY'S IS 0EEY LLLTIST 059°T8C 699°T60° [E9VIP'T - - sfesodsiq
- - - - - - - - - coumw__ﬁa.mw
6LTOV0'T8T | 6VT981°ES | ¥9L'9TS 81 LTY'LLE'S 750°88€°01 | LV0'69L9 656'7T1°Tl - - | Teak oy Sunnp uonismboy
6LI0V0'T8T | 6VT981°ES | $IL'9TS'SI LIV'LLE'S 7S0°88€°01 | LF0°69L9 6S6'YT1°T1 - - suonIppy
66F'961°00F  [TSSTOT'EIL  |PT6'6TT 6€T PI6'€0106  (SP8'O8E°0S  [S9°66STY  (9ITTL6TOE |- - LLOT PUI peysy je duefeq
0 B . - - - - - - aunsnlpy
979‘8S1°¢ SILI96 | PLS'SOET €17'9S 806°90€°L | 8SY'8¥6 - - - sjesodsi(y
- - - - uonezijende))
061°8TI'EPT | 6SL'EL8'09 | 88T'991°IT 8TL'6YE9 00€T0€'S | 00S°L8Y°T 776°L9€°9T - - | Teak oy Surnp uonismboy
061°8TI'EPT | 6SL'EL8'09 | 88T'991°IT 8TL'6YE9 00£T0€°S | 005°L89'T 776°L9€°9T - - suonIppy
PE6°97T°097 | SP6'SE0'TLY | 0TT'69€E 61T 66£°018°C8 | ESHTGETS | 019°098°0F | ELT'H09'SLT - - 907 PU9 PEYSY JE due[eg

LLOT pud
peysy [e)0]

8L0T pud

PeyYsy [eJ0L,

YdN ut junouty

$)98SY J3Y10

A

JUIyIRIy

SANIXIY

3 danyruing

SIPIYIA

SILI0SSIIIY

Jndwo)

$1388Y
ployasea|

ssuip[ing | pue]

("panunuo))) syuduidje)s [eroueuLy 3Y) Jo Jred Surueioy s)oN
pajury yueq judwdopAd( el-L1dueys

sie[napaed

(A4) yuowdmby pue Kaadoag €1y

66



Shangri-la Development Bank Ltd.

17t Annual Report 2077/78

(AU T FFAE @ AR FATAS A FEAT)

-myIpuadxa anudAal se saseyoind uo JJo paSIeyd are ()00 YN Uy S 51509 im Juawdiby
Kyadoag-aouereq Suruado oy ur paysnipe uaaq sey JudWE)S [e1oueul 184 snoradxd ayy 1od se pue 1)SIFa1 S}aSSe PAXIY AU} UM IUAIIP Y[, JUN0IIL
$S0[ 10 J1j01d UI WOJUT JAYJO UI PAZIUF0IAI ST (WA 3y JO Junowe SuIA1red Ay} pue [esodsip woij spaadoid Ju Y} UAIMIOQ FOUIJIP A Se PAe[NI[ed)
jawdmba pue A1adoxd Jo wayr ue jo (esodsip uo ssof 10 ured Auy yueq y} 03 MOJJ [[IM AMIPUAAXS Y} WO SHJAU] JTWOUOI dIMNY Ay Jey) d[qeqoid
SL 1 J1 pazipeyded st aamyipuadxd juanbasqng 11809 18 pAzIugodal AJ[eniul ‘jasse ue se PAZIUG0dar uddq sey judwdmba pue Aadoxd Jo way ue Jo 31509 Ay

LPTO0L'LTY  |6¥6°997°98E  |6ISHS6'STT |- LYT'E6LTY 661°98L°ST  |TST'6EL'ST £€8°€66'S81 |- - 8L0T pus peysy je uejeq
T6L6YL60T  |LTI'968°TIF  |LS6‘0SP'STI |- SS8‘TLY'LY SSI‘PLIYT  |186°1€S L 8LI990°T07 |- - LLOT Pud peysy je duejeq
99L6¥8°T0T  |LPT00L'LTY  |66T°TIL'6TI |- TLEEI0'TS 6L8°SE9°9T  |98€'S8IBI Tvo1zor |- - 9L0T PUd peysy je dueeq
LLOT PUd 8L07 PUd| SISSY YO | Arduryaepy SIN)IXLY SIPIYIA|  SILIOSSANY §)9ssy | surpping [pue
Peysy [e10], | PeYSY [e10], 2 amuIng 19ndwo) pIoyasea] Hn[PA YOO 1N
- - - - - - - - - - 8L07 $$313014 U1 Y04\ [epde)
- - - - - - - - - - LLOT $S318014 Ul Y10 [ende)
- - - - - - - - - - 9,07 $S313044 u1 YI0A\ [epde)
86L'SEEYYT  |8LS'6LS'I8E  [€TYILY'LEL |- LIE9LI'IS 6h0'90LYE  |6L8'9ES TE 11L°889°9T1 |- - $L07 PUd peysy Je duejeq
- - - - - - waunsnpy
TyTsre 9T1°S10'8 pLS1T8°E - €LOLY'T v9°78T $¥9°T60°1 061°TLET - - sjesodsi(y
- - - - - - Ied & 9yp 10§ judunreduy
€0SIP0'E9 | 6LTTTOL | 0STHIS'LT - 1€€°12T°01 T00°9LLS TS8°198°S €98S1°LT - - | 183 oy 10y d8xey) uoneroadaq

LLOT PUd
Peysy [e10L

8L0T pud
PEYSY [E)0 L

$)8SY JOYI0

AJuryae A

SIN)XIY
¥ dmyuanyg

SIPIPA

SILI0SSINIY

Jndwo)

§198SY
ployased|

ssuipping | puer|

sIemaned

67



Hifdretr Saiciudiec db o1

Shangri-la Development Bank Ltd.

(AU T FFAE @ AR FATAS A GEAT)

17th Annual Report 2077/78

Shangri-la Development Bank Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.14 Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Amount in NPR
Software As at
Particulars Goodwill | Purchased |Developed |Others As at Ashad end
Ashad end 2078 2077

Cost
Balance at Ashad end 2076 - 20,040,675 - - 20,040,675 12,981,339
Additions: - - - - - 971,800
Acquisition - - - - - 971,800
Capitalization - - - - - -
Disposals or classified as held for
sale - - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - - -
Balance at Ashad end 2077 - 20,040,675 - - 20,040,675 13,953,139
Additions - 452,000 - - 452,000 6,087,536
Acquisition - 452,000 - - 452,000 6,087,536
Capitalization - - - - - -
Disposals or classified as held for
sale - - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - - -
Balance at Ashad end 2078 - 20,492,675 - - 20,492,675 20,040,675
Amortization and Impairment -
Balance at Ashad end 2076 - 12,930,288 - - 12,930,288 9,520,745
Amortization charge for the Year - 1,937,980 - - 1,937,980 1,459,034
Impairment for the Year - - - -
Disposals - - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - - -
Balance at Ashad end 2077 - 14,868,268 - - 14,868,268 10,979,778
Amortization charge for the Year - 1,701,123 - - 1,701,123 1,950,510
Impairment for the Year - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - - -
Balance at Ashad end 2078 - 16,569,390 - - 16,569,390 12,930,288
Capital Work in Progress -

Net Book Value

Goodwill

Software

Purchased

Developed [Others

As at
Ashad end 2078

As at
Ashad end
2077

Balance at Ashad end 2076 - 7,110,387 - - 7,110,387 3,460,595
Balance at Ashad end 2077 - 5,172,408 - - 5,172,408 2,973,361
Balance at Ashad end 2078 - 3,923,285 - - 3,923,285 7,110,387

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the

specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is probable that it will

generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the basis of expected

useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense upfront. Software is amortised on a

straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the date that it is available for use. The estimated

useful life of software for the current and comparative periods is five years. Software assets with costs less than NPR

5,000 are charged off on purchases as revenue expenditure.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.15 Deferred tax
Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

Amount in NPR
Particular As at As at
tewiars 15 July 2021 15 July 2020
Deferred tax assets 33,340,536 28,432,733
Deferred tax liabilities - -
Net Amount 33,340,536 28,432,733

Particulars

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax

As at 15 July 2020
Net Deferred Tax

Deferred tax on temporary differences on
following items

Assets

Liabilities

Assets/(Liabilities)

Loan and advance to BFIs

Loan and advance to customers

Investment Properties

other comprehensive income

Investment Securities 2,260,833 - 2,260,833
Investment in Associate and Subsidiary - - -
Property & Equipment 2,098,125 2,098,125
Gratuity Liability - -
Leave Liability 16,908,098 - 16,908,098
Lease liabilities 7,165,677 - 7,165,677
Loan Loss Provision - -
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporory differences 28,432,733 - 28,432,733
losses - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred tax asset/liabilities as on Ashadh
End 2077 28,432,733
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Ashad

31,716,495
End 2076 -
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (3,283,762)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in 2,424,225
profit or loss
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in (5,707,987)

Deferred tax expense/(income recognised in
directly in equity
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

Deferred tax (Continued..)

As at 15 July 2021

Particulars Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Net Deferred Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets/(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on _ _ _
following items
Loan and advance to BFIs - - -
Loan and advance to customers - - -
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities 286,356 - 286,356
Investment in Associate and Subsidiary - - -
Property & Equipment 2,858,399 2,858,399
Gratuity Liability - -
Leave Liability 21,844,662 - 21,844,662
Lease liabilities 8,351,119 - 8,351,119
Loan Loss Provision - -
Other temporary differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporory differences 33,340,536 - 33,340,536
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
llzlleltj];;t;e;red tax asset/liabilities as on Ashadh 33,340,536
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Ashad
End 2077 ( ) 28,432,733
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 4,907,804
]]::jfil;rsflt)zls); expense/(income) recognised in 6,882,281
Deferred tax exper.nse/'(income) recognised in (1,974,477)
other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/(income recognised in _
directly in equity
Other Assets
Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Assets held for sale - -
Other non banking assets - -
Bills receivable - -
Accounts receivable 56,698,177 73,597,268
Accrued Income - -
Prepayments and Deposit 2,924,676 2,023,327
Income Tax Deposit
Deferred Employee expenditure 67,186,476 31,490,712
Other 10,350,342 9,893,539
Stationery 9,411,761 9,042,049
Comission receivables 0 2)
Deposit 793,667 790,197
Gold and Silver Coin 144,914 61,294
Total 137,159,671 117,004,846
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat 15 July 2020
Money Market Deposit - -
Interbank Borrowing - -
Other deposits from BFIs 1,052,292,705 1,120,730,594

Settlement and clearing accounts -
Other deposits from BFIs - -
Total 1,052,292,705 1,120,730,594
The balances in accounts maintained with the Bank by other local financial institution have been
presented under this head. Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing

accounts as well as other amount due to bank and financial institution is presented under due to bank and
financial institutions.

4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Amount in NPR
Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Refinance from NRB 750,463,771 1,327,845

Standing Liquidity Facility -
Lender of last resort facility from NRB -
Sale and repurchase agreement -
Other due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Total 750,463,771 1,327,845

The amount payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, sale
and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

4.19 Derivative Financial Instruments

Amount in NPR

Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap -
Currency Swap -
Forward exchange Contract. -
Others -
Held for risk management -
Interest Rate Swap -
Currency Swap -
Forward exchange Contract -
Others -
Total -

The Bank does not have any derivative financial instruments as on the reporting date.



". Shangri-la Dvlopment Bank Ltd.

72

Aifdretr Sarciudiec db a1

Serfien PEsTerST SuET

(AUT T ShaE @ AR S AT AT

17th Annual Report 2077/78

Shangri-la Development Bank Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.20 Deposit from Customers

Particulars
Corporate Customers

As at 15 July 2021

| As at 15 July 2020

Term Deposit

9,708,591,661

5,790,186,524

Call Deposit 4,050,991,962 2,809,451,708
Current Deposit 611,217,183 400,170,351
Other 16,229,292 18,444,101

14,387,030,099 9,018,252,683
Retail Deposit

Term Deposit

14,182,859,319

9,593,789,153

Saving Deposit

13,020,034,671

9,364,245,728

Current Deposit 201,220,414 124,113,884
Other 6,205,538 32,295,401
27,410,319,942 19,114,444,166
Total 41,797,350,041 28,132,696,849
4.20.1 Currency wise Analysis of Deposit from Customer
Amount in NPR

Particulars
Nepalese rupee

As at 15 July 2021
41,797,350,041

| As at 15 July 2020
28,132,696,849

Indian rupee

United State dollar

Great Britain pound

Euro

Japenese yen

Chinese yuan

Other

Total

41,797,350,041

28,132,696,849

The Bank only has deposit on NPR as on the reporting date.

4.21 Borrowing

Particulars
Domestic Borrowing

As at 15 July 2021

Amount in NPR
| As at 15 July 2020

Nepal Government

Other Institution

Other

Subtotal

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign B/FIs

Multilateral Development Banks

Other Institutions

Sub total

Total

The Bank does not have any borrowing as on the reporting date.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.22 Provisions

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat 15 July 2020
Provisions for redundancy - -
Provision for restructuring - -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - -
Onerous contracts - -
Other - -
Total - -
4.22.1 Movement in provision
Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat 15 July 2020
Balance at Sawan 1 -
Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount - -
Balance at Asar end - -
4.23  Other Liabilities
Amount in NPR

Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat 15 July 2020
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations - -
Liability for long-service leave 72,815,539 56,360,325
Short-term employee benefits
Bills Payable 6,875,982 3,981,780
Creditors and accruals 174,459,970 63,572,489
Interest payable on deposit 102,952,991 102,628,879
Interest payable on borrowing - -
Liabilities on defered grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend 12,158,271 12,158,271
Liabilities under Finance Lease - -
Employee bonus payable 65,400,208 29,812,182
Other 89,635,752 69,028,546

Audit Fee Payable 1,511,000 1,460,650

TDS payable 36,461,765 27,936,950

Central Fund 2,459,411 2,459,411

Emergency Fund 6,272,922 6,272,922

Liabilities for employees defined contribution

obligations - -

Other 42,930,654 30,898,613
Total 524,298,714 337,542,472

Liabilities relating to employees benefits like gratuity and pension fund, liabilities for long-service leave,
short-term employee benefits etc., Creditors and accruals, unpaid dividend etc. are presented under this
account head of other liabilities. Long service leave consists of sick leave and annual leave. Actuarial
breakup for defined benefit obligations have been disclosed in dicslosure in Note 4.23.1
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

Defined benefit obligations

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Particulars
Present value of unfunded obligations

Amount in NPR

| As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Present value of funded obligations

Total present value of obligations

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligations

Bank has implemented Defined Contribution Plan from 2075.10.01 Previously bank used to
follow Defined Benefits Plan. Plan assets has been deposited on NCC Retirement Fund.

Plan Assets

Particulars

Equity Shares

Amount in NPR

| As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Government Bonds

Bank Deposit

Other

Total

Movement in Present Value of defined benefits Obligation

Amount in NPR

Fair Value of Obligation at beginning of the year

As at 15 July 2021

| As at 15 July 2020

Acturial (gain)/loss

Benefits paid by the plan

Current Service Cost and Interest

Defined benefits obligation at year end

Movement in Present Value of Plan Assets

Particulars

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1

Amount in NPR

| As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Actuarial losses

Benefits paid by the plan

Current Service Cost and Interest

Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end
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4.23.5 A Expenses Recognized in Income Statement
Amount in NPR
Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Current service cost -

Past service costs-(non Vested) - -
Past service costs (Vested) - -
Interest cost - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets -
Expenses Recognized in Income Statement - -

4.23.6 A Expenses Recognized in other comprehensive income
Amount in NPR

Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Acturial (gain)/loss
Expenses Recognized in Income Statement - -

4.23.7 A Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Discount rate

Expected return on plan asset

Future salary increase
Expected return on Plan Assets

4.23.1 B Provision for Leave
The amount recognised in Statement of Financial Position:

Amount in NPR
Present value of unfunded defined benefit
obligation 72,815,539 56,360,325
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation - -
Total Present value of obligations 72,815,539 56,360,325
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present Value of Net Obligation 72,815,539 56,360,325
Recognised Liability for defined benefit
obligations 72,815,539 56,360,325
4.23.2 B Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise Amount in NPR
Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Equity Shares - -
Government Bonds - -
Bank Deposit - -
Other - -
Total - -

7

W



P

76

Aifdretr Saiciudiec db o1

4.234B

4.235B

4.23.6 B

4.23.7B

Shangri-| Ia Development Bank Ltd.

17th Annual Report 2077/78

Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)
4.23.3 B Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Amount in NPR

Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 56,360,325 54,544,886
Actuarial losses 7,539,377 (13,573,532)
Benefits paid by the plan (12,388,439) (4,893,205)
Current Service Cost and Interest 21,304,276 20,282,176
Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end 72,815,539 56,360,325
Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Amount in NPR

Particulars
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1

| As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Contributions paid into the plan

Benefits paid during the year

Interest Income

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end

Expenses Recognized in Income Statement

Amount in NPR
Current service cost 16,789,327 16,635,296
Past service costs-(non Vested) - -
Past service costs (Vested) - -
Acturial (gain)/loss 7,539,377 (13,573,532)
Interest cost 4,514,949 3,646,880
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Expenses Recognized in Income Statement 28,843,653 6,708,644
Expenses Recognized in other comprehensive income

Amount in NPR

Particulars
Acturial (gain)/loss

| As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Expenses Recognized in Income Statement

Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Discount rate 7% 8%
Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increase 8% 8%
Withdrawal rate 5% 5%
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.24 Debt secutities issued
Amount in NPR
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value
through profit or loss - -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost - -
Total - -
The Bank does not have any kind of Debt secutities as on the reporting date.
4.25 Subordinate Liabilities
Amount in NPR

Redeemable preference shares

(liabilities component)

Irredemable cumulative preference shares

Other

Total

The Bank does not have any kind of subordinated liabilities as on the reporting date.

4.26 Share Capital

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat 15 July 2020
Ordinary Shares 2,736,972,420 2,606,640,400
Convertible Preference Shares - -
Irredemable Preference Shares (equity component - -
only)
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - -
Total 2,736,972,420 2,606,640,400
4.26.1 Ordinary Shares
Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat 15 July 2020
Authorised capital
30,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs 100 each 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
Issued capital
27,369,724.2 Ordinary Shares of Rs 100 each 2,736,972,420 2,606,640,400
Paid up capital
27,369,724.2 Ordinary Shares of Rs 100 each 2,736,972,420 2,606,640,400
Total 2,736,972,420 2,606,640,400
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.26.2 Ordinary Share Ownership

] As at 15 July 2021 As at 15 July 2020
Particulars
‘ Y% | Amount ‘ % | N T

Domestic Ownership 100% 2,736,972,420( 100% 2,606,640,400
Nepal Government
"A" Class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
General Public 49% 1,341,117,960 49% 1,277,255,200
Promoter 51% 1,395,854,460 51% 1,329,385,201
Others
Foreign Ownership
Total 100% 2,736,972,420 | 100% 2,606,640,400
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.27 Reserves

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July 2021 | Asat 15 July 2020

Statutory General reserve 505,123,252 423,107,161
Exchange equalization reserve 260,405 260,405
Corporate social responsibility reserve 4,158,968 5,658,404
Capital redemption reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 150,705,749 115,759,031
Investment adjustment reserve - 5,000,000

Capital reserve - -

Assets revaluation reserve - -
Fair value reserve (668,166) (5,275,279)
Dividend equalization reserve - -
Actuarial gain - -
Special reserve - -
Staff Training Reserve - 1,392,949
Total 659,580,208 545,902,672

General Reserve

As per Directive No: 4/77, bank is required to maintain a minimum 20% of the net profit to the general
reserve until the reserve is twice the paid up share capital and thereafter a minimum 10% of Profit of each
year. This reserve is not available for distribution to shareholder in any form and requires specific
approval of the central bank for any transfer from this heading.

Movement in General Reserve are as

Amount in NPR

Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 ‘ As at 15 July 2020
Opening Balance of General Reserve 423,107,161 384,887,598
20% of Net Profit Allocated 82,016,091 38,219,563
Closing Balance of General Reserve 505,123,252 423,107,161

Exchange Equalization Reserve
As per Directive No: 4/77, bank is required to appropriate 25% of current year’s total revaluation gain

(except gain from revaluation of Indian Currency) into this heading.

Regulatory Reserve

As per Directive No: 4/77, bank is required to maintained statutory reserve in the transition to NFRS from
previous GAAP. The bank is required to reclassify all amounts that are resultant of re-measurement
adjustment and that are recognized in retained earning into this reserve heading.

The amount reclassified to this reserve includes re-measurement adjustments such as interest income
recognized against interest receivables, amount of deferred tax assets, Fair value reserve for investment,
and amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS etc. The bank has compiled with this regulatory
requirement.
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Movement in Regulatory Reserve are as follows:

Balance at Shrawan 01, 2074

(AT T FFAE @ AR SATAS A FEAT)

Amount in NPR

Adjustment/Restatement

31,047,329

4,513,852

4,011,864

39,573,045

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against NBA

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Deferred Tax

112,498

112,498

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Actuary Reserve

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against FV Reserve

21,434,832

21,434,832

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Interest Receivable

14,382,628

14,382,628

Balance at Ashad 32, 2075

45,429,957

4,626,350

25,446,696

75,503,003

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against NBA

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Deferred Tax

27,090,144

27,090,144

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Actuary Reserve

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against FV Reserve

1,893,300

1,893,300

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Interest Receivable

12,574,709

12,574,709

Balance at Ashad 31, 2076

58,004,665

31,716,494

27,339,996

117,061,155

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against NBA

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Deferred Tax

(3,283,762)

(3,283,762)

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Actuary Reserve

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against FV Reserve

(22,064,718)

(22,064,718)

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Interest Receivable

24,046,357

24,046,357

Balance at Ashad 31, 2077

82,051,022

28,432,731

5,275,278

115,759,031

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against NBA

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Deferred Tax

4,907,805

4,907,805

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Actuary Reserve

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against FV Reserve

(4,607,112)

(4,607,112)

Transfer from RE to Regulatory
Reserve against Interest Receivable

34,646,025

34,646,025

Balance at Ashad 31, 2078

116,697,047

33,340,536

668,166

150,705,749
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

Fair value Reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is a requirement in the application of accounting policy for financial assets.
Assets that are not classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss, Held to maturity and Loans and Receivables
are categorized as Available for Sale financial instruments. The accounting of gain or loss in the fair value
movement of Financial Assets is done through other comprehensive income under NAS 39.

Other reserve

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) are presented under this by

disclosing accounting heads.

a. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating 1% of Net profit as per NRB
Directive is presented under this account head and is utilized towards corporate social responsibility expenditure
in subsequent year.

Amount in NPR
Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Opening Balance of CSR Reserve 5,658,404 5,231,690
1% of Net Profit allocated 4,100,805 1,910,978
Utilisation from CSR Fund (5,600,241) (1,484,264)
Closing Balance of CSR Reserve 4,158,968 5,658,404

b. Staff Training Fund

This is a statutory reserve specified in NRB Directive 6/77 and is created on the basis of 3% of Personnel
expenses of preceding year. Then after the provisioned amount is forwarded for staff training and development.
However, owing to the pandemic, NRB has provided relaxation to the provision for the fiscal year.

c¢.  Investment Adjustment Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve pertains to maintain as per the regulatory requirement of the Directive No. 8 of
Nepal Rastra Bank’s Unified Directives. Bank has to create the investment reserve of an amount equivalent to
the investment in the equity shares if the shares remain unquoted within three years from the date of investment.
Such amount should not be utilized elsewhere unless such shares get listed.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

Details of investment in unquoted stocks as on reporting date are given below:

Name of investment ’ Date of ‘ Cost Price
investment (NPR)
Nepal Clearing House Limited 1/20/2015 925,000
Nepal Electronic Payment System 6/28/2018 1,000,000
Smart Choice Technologies Ltd. 11/25/2020 26,666,700
NIC Asia Select 30 Mutual Fund 6/27/2021 5,000,000
Total 33,591,700

Bank has not created investment adjustment reserve for the investment made in Nepal Clearing House and
Nepal Electronic Payment System as it is not required. If investment is made of 51% or more in company
which is not to be listed as per the customary law and investment made in CIB Nepal, Nepal Clearing Housing
Ltd. and Nepal Infrastructure Bank Ltd.then for such investment, investment adjustment reserve is not required to
be maintained.

Also for the investment in the company established for the modernization of payment system in Nepal through

Payment Switch amplified by the joint investment of minimum of 15 BFIs, such reserve is not required.

Moreover, Bank has investment in Smart Choice Technologies Ltd and NIC Asia Select 30 Mutual Fund in
which the bank's investment period has not exceeded three years as on reporting date. So, such reserve
has not been created against such investment.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Amount in NPR
Particulars |As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Contingent liabilities 94,088,051 110,029,716
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 1,935,862,054 1,436,947,072
Capital commitment - -
Lease Commitment - -
Litigation - 648,517
Total 2,029,950,105 1,547,625,305
4.28.1 Contingent liabilities
Amount in NPR
Particulars |As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Acceptance and documentary credit - -
Bills for collection - -
Forward exchange contracts - -
Guarantees 94,088,051 110,029,716
Underwriting commitment - -
Other commitments - -
Total 94,088,051 110,029,716

4.28.2 Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Amount in NPR
Particulars |As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Undisbursed amount of loans 570,173,511 554,495,859
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 1,340,325,044 882,451,213
Undrawn limits of credit cards - -
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - -
Undrawn limits of guarantee 25,363,500 -
Total 1,935,862,054 1,436,947,072

4.28.3 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in
financial statements
Amount in NPR

Particulars |As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Capital commitments in relation to Property and
Equipment
Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub total - -
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub total - -
Total - -
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4.28.4 Lease commitments

Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable
operating lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Sub total - -
Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable
operating lease, where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Sub total - -
Grand total - -

All the operating lease entered by bank are cancellable by giving a notice period and the bank do not
have any finance lease commitments as on reporting date.

4.28.5 Litigation
Amount in NPR
As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Particulars

Contingent Tax Liabilities-Income Tax - 648,517
4.29 Interest income

Amount in NPR
Cash and cash equivalent 30,089,017 184,819,220
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions - -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 223,116,549 97,728,328
Loans and advances to customers 3,102,031,893 2,764,632,545
Investment securities 129,540,042 68,637,277
Loan and advances to staff 29,024,877 19,070,388
Other 1,403,945 163,712
Total interest income 3,515,206,323 3,135,051,468
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4.30 Interest expense

Particulars

Amount in NPR

| Asat 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Due to bank and financial institutions 49,014,575 213,602,174
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Deposits from customers 2,249,803,390 1,866,418,079
Borrowing 5,352,952 1,085,616
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other 4,514,949 3,646,880
Total interest expense 2,308,685,866 2,084,752,749
4.31 Fees and Commission Income
Amount in NPR

Particulars | Asat 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

Loan administration fees

Service fees

207,013,088

145,756,907

Consortium fees

Commitment fees

DD/TT/Swift fees

Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees

1,737,841

1,688,050

Renewal Fees

Prepayment and swap fees

Investment banking fees

Asset management fees

Brokerage fees

Remittance fees

6,090,466

7,589,854

Commission on letter of credit

Commission on guarantee contracts issued

2,111,986

935,684

Commission on share underwriting/issue

Locker rental

1,200,250

972,125

Other fees and commission income

12,223,249

9,843,391

Total fees and Commission Income

230,376,880

166,786,011
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Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

4.32 Fees and commission expense

Amount in NPR
ATM management fees 6,905,955 3,562,695
VISA/Master card fees - -
Guarantee commission - -
Brokerage - -
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Remittance fees and commission - -
Other fees and commission expense - -
Total fees and Commission Expense 6,905,955 3,562,695

Payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the bank are presented under this
account head.

4.33 Net trading income

Amount in NPR
Changes in fair value of trading assets - -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -
Interest income on trading assets - -
Dividend income on trading assets - -
Gain/loss foreign exchange transation - -
Other - -
Net trading income - -

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all
realized interests, dividends and foreign exchange differences as well as unrealized changes in fair
value of trading assets and liabilities. Bank does not have any income under this heading.

4.34 Other operating income

Amount in NPR
Foreign exchange revauation gain (77,395) 1,041,619
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities 239,698,678 -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - -
Dividend on equity instruments 9,876,252 3,848,966
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment (83,089) 2,640,149
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -
Operating lease income - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - -
Other - _
Total 249,414,446 7,530,734
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Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Particulars ‘

As at
15 July 2021

Amount in NPR
As at
15 July 2020

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances

to B/FIs - -

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances 232,465,157 256,700,161

to customer

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - -

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with - -

banks and financial institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and - -

equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and - -

intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment - -

properties

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Others Assets 3,602,658 2,780,966

Total 236,067,814 259,481,127
Personnel Expense

Amount in NPR

Salary 160,847,684 150,243,058
Allowances 174,251,256 136,410,095
Gratuity expense 14,453,431 12,541,447
Provident fund 17,291,804 15,024,230
Uniform 324,666 766,686
Training & development expense 2,878,217 5,499,036
Leave encashment 30,413,167 6,268,420
Medical -
Insurance 2,890,335 3,154,332
Voluntary Retirement Expenses 16,700,369 -
Cash-settled share-based payments -
Pension expense - -
Finance expense under NFRS 1,815,104 3,924,681
Other expenses related to staff 2,968,137 3,145,078
Subtotal 424,834,170 336,977,063
Employees bonus 65,400,208 29,812,182
Grand total 490,234,378 366,789,245

Provision for staff bonus is a mandatory requirement under the Bonus Act, 2030. All expenses related to
employees of a bank has been included under this head. Expenses covered under this head include employees'
salary, allowances, pension, gratuity, contribution to provident fund, training expenses, uniform expenses,

insurance, staff bonus, finance expense under NFRS, cash-settled share-based payments etc. Bank has provided
NPR 16,700,369 under voluntary retirement service during this fiscal year.
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4.37 Other operating expense

Amount in NPR
Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Directors' fee 954,000 481,000
Directors' expense 411,035 441,506
External Audit Fee 791,000 745,800
Internal Audit Fee 720,000 1,412,500
Other audit related expense - -
Professional and legal expense 792,992 770,095
Office administration expense (4.37 A) 98,915,860 78,575,495
Operating lease expense (4.37 B) 161,359,198 156,559,085
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 5,600,241 1,484,264
Onerous lease provisions - -
Other 13,217,535 9,250,831
Repair and Maintainance Building 1,356,885 204,147
Repair & Maintenance Vehicle 1,809,578 1,528,706
Repair & Maintenance Others 5,434,750 4,526,500
Furniture and office Equipement Expenses 3,683,668 2,659,022
Share issue Expenses 932,653 332,457
Total 282,761,861 249,720,577

All operating expenses other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and presented
under this account head. The expenses covered under this account head includes office
administration expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors' remuneration and non
audit fee paid to auditors, professional and legal expense, branch closure cost expense, redundancy
cost expense, expense of restructuring, impairment of non financial assets, expense of corporate

social responsibility, onerous lease provisions etc

4.37 A Office administration expense

Amount in NPR

Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020
Insurance 14,609,376 13,140,432
Postage, Telex, Telephone & Fax 3,386,435 3,001,790
Printing, Stationery & Small Purchases 15,044,284 10,983,667
Newspaper, Books and Journals 160,563 237,020
Advertisement 12,936,427 10,168,542
Travel Allowance & Expenses 3,327,053 3,219,051
Fuel & Gas 4,889,650 3,854,499
Entertainment - -
AGM Expenses 1,038,110 810,395
Annual Fee 1,098,299 1,048,211
Office Expenses 38,620,376 28,782,940
Other Meeting Expenses 188,500 117,500
Miscelleneous Expenses 3,616,790 3,211,449
Total 98,915,860 78,575,495
4.37 B Operating Lease Expenses
Amount in NPR
Particulars | As at 15 July 2021 | As at 15 July 2020

House Rent Expenses 86,134,344 79,966,482
Electricity Expenses 13,504,446 11,830,886
Security Expenses 61,720,408 64,761,718
Total 161,359,198 156,559,085
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Depreciation & Amortisation

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat 15 July 2020

Depreciation on property and equipment 79,228,279 75,399,201
Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,701,123 1,937,980
Total 80,929,402 77,337,181
Non Operating Income

Amount in NPR

Particulars
Recovery of loan written off

| As at 15 July 2021

| As at 15 July 2020

Other income 129,070 1,882,713
Total 129,070 1,882,713
The income that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions is presented under this head.
Non Operating Expense

Amount in NPR

Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat 15 July 2020

Loan written off 898,120 1,291,759
Redundancy provision - -
Expense of restructuring - -
Other expense 41,454 5,960
Total 939,574 1,297,719

The expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions is presented under this head. During F.Y.
2077/78, bank has written-off loan of Dakshinkali Sun Chandi Pasal amounting NPR 898,120.

Income Tax Expenses

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat15 July 2020

Current Tax Expenses 185,403,693 79,636,045
Current Year 185,403,693 79,636,045
Adjustment for Prior Years -
Deferred tax Expenses (6,882,281) (2,424,225)
Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences (6,882,281) (2,424,225)
Change in tax Rate
Recognition of Previously unrecognized Tax Losses - -
Total Income tax expense 178,521,413 77,211,820

The amount of income tax on net taxable profit is recognized and presented under this account head. This account head
includes current tax expense and deferred tax expense/deferred tax income.

Reconciliation of Tax Expense and Accounting Profit

Amount in NPR
Particulars | Asat15July2021 | Asat15 July 2020

Profit before tax 588,601,870 268,309,634
Tax amount at tax rate of 30 % 176,580,561 80,492,890
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 2,093,762 3,104,556
Less: Tax effect on exempt income (152,912) (1,946,734)
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 2 (4,438,891)
Total income tax expense 178,521,413 77,211,820
Effective tax rate 30.33% 28.78%




Jifdren SetcTudioe A far.
17th Annual Report 2077/78 z Shangri-la Development Bank Ltd.

ceria PEmTerST ST

(AT T ShaE @ AR SIS AT AT

Shangri-la Development Bank Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)
5.1. Risk Management

Risk Management structure of the Bank has set clear separation between business function and risk
management function. Accordingly, the Bank has set up a separate Risk Management & Compliance
Department. The department oversees the risk that arise out of daily business operation as well as on
periodic basis and are put to the oversight of Top Management, Risk Management Committee and
the Board to discuss the reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

» Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Bank and is responsible to frame and
implement robust policies and framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction issued
by the regulatory authority. BOD ensures the strategies, policies and procedure is in accordance with
the risk appetite/tolerance limit for effective management of risk within the Bank. The board
understands the nature of risk of the bank, and periodically reviews reports on risk management,
including policies and standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy through the reporting
by the Risk Management Committee.

> Risk Governance

Bank has prepared and implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level
arising to the bank and has inculcated risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership
mentality, capacity building programs, well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical
culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Bank seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and
liquidity risks which arise directly through the Bank’s commercial activities as well as operational,
regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for the establishment of, and compliance with,
policies relating to management risk, supply risk, production risk, demand risk and collection risk.

The bank’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the
bank's risk blanket is cascaded down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business,
senior management and committees. Information regarding material risk issues and compliance with
policies and standards is communicated through the business, functional, senior management and
committees.

> Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Bank has appropriate internal control framework in place
that supports the achievement of the strategies and objectives. The various functions of the Bank
should be looked upon with a view to establish a proper control mechanism is in place during
expansion and growth which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce
risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and enhance resilience to external events.

The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and
control/ monitoring, in line with the NRB directives has effectively implemented the same at the
Bank.
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> Credit Risk

5.2.

92

Credit risk is the probability of loss of principle and reward associated with it due to failure of
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations to pay the Bank in accordance with agreed terms. The
Credit Risk Monitoring and Reporting Framework/ have been prepared in order to mitigate/ minimize
the credit risk of the Bank through appropriate monitoring and reporting framework established within
the Bank.

Bank has implemented various System/ Policies/ Procedures/ Guidelines for the effective
management of Credit Risk. For the purpose of assessment of credit risk of the bank, following
activities were carried out:

7

¢ Current system/policies/procedures/guidelines formulated were gone through;

% Actual Exposure of credit limit product wise, segment wise were checked against Risk
Appetite, tolerance limit mentioned in Respective Product Paper Guidelines, Credit Policy
and Credit Risk Management Policy;

% Review of various reports prepared by the Departments such as Account Monitoring Report,
Loan Overdue Report, Loan Report, NRB reports and Margin Monitoring Reports.

Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk to a bank resulting from movements in market prices, in particular,
changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity and commodity prices. Market risk is
defined as the risk of losses in on and off-balance sheet positions arising from movements in market
prices.

Foreign Exchange Risk:

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Bank to experience volatility in the value of its assets,
liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between
the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency.

Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Liquidity Risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that bank may be unable to meet short term financial demands. This usually
occurs due to the inability to convert a security or hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or
income in the process. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Bank might be unable
to meet its payment obligations when they fall due, as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash
flows under both normal and stress circumstances. Such scenarios could occur when funding needed
for liquid asset positions is not available to the Bank on acceptable terms.

Capital Management

The Bank manages its capital to meet regulatory norms and current and future business needs
considering the risks in its business. For the purpose of effective management of the capital the bank
has formulated and implemented the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Procedure (ICAAP)
which encompasses policies, processes and methodologies to determine the adequate level of
capitalisation for the Bank to meet regulatory norms and current and future business needs under
normal as well and under stress scenarios. The Board of Directors on the frequent interval monitor
the capital adequacy position and the risk weighted assets and take a necessary steps as appropriate.
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(Rs. in '000)
1. 1 RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES As at 15 July 2021 ‘ As a; OIZSOJ“IY
a | Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 30,920,507.23 21,856,760.35
b | Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 1,677,092.19 1,466,449.13
¢ | Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 5,772.28 4,652.22

1)

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before adjustments of Pillar

32,603,371.70

23,327,861.70

Adjustments under Pillar 11

ALM policies & practices are not satisfactory, add 1%
of net interest income to RWE

Add .....% of the total deposit due to insufficient Liquid
Assets

Add RWE equvalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 2

% of gross income. 244,923.09 581,042.29
Overall risk management policies and precedures are
not satisfactory. Add 2% of RWE 652,067.43 933,114.47
Ifa’e.sn’ed level of disclosure requirement has not been ) 699.835.85
achieved, Add .....% of RWE
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of]
Pillar IT) 33,500,362.22 25,541,854.30
As at 15 July
1.2 CAPITAL As at 15 July 2021 ‘ 2020
(A) Core Capital (Tier 1) 3,524,673.88 3,154,808.08
Paid up Equity Share Capital 2,736,972.42 2,606,640.40
Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares
Share Premium
Proposed Bonus Equity Shares
Statutory General Reserves 505,123.25 423,107.16
Retained Earnings 315,918.74 153,493.26

Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss)

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Adjustment Reserve

—- || e | |e |0 |[o)®

Dividend Equalization Reserves
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Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

33,340.54

28,432.73

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial
Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial
interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of
limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting
commitments

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

t

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and
unutilized

u

Less: Other Deductions

Adjustments under Pillar 11

6.4a(1
)

Less: Shortfall in Provision

6.4a(2
)

Less: Loans & Facilities extended to related parties and
restricted lending

(B) Su

plementary Capital (Tier 2)

419,014.93

324,533.58

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

o |lo |

General loan loss provision

418,754.53

319,273.18

Exchange Equalization Reserve

260.40

260.40

Investment Adjustment Reserve

5,000.00

Asset Revaluation Reserve

=n V= Ll K]

Other Reserves

Total Capital Fund (Tier I and Tier II)

3,943,688.81

3,479,341.67

1.3 CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS

As at 15 July 2021

As at 15 July 2020

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's

adjustments of Pillar II) 10.52% 12.35%
Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures

(After Bank's adjustments of Pillar II) 11.77% 13.62%
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements(Continued...)
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk
As on 31st Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
(Rs. in '000)
’ . Fiscal Year
S.N. Particulars
2074/075 2075/076 2076/077
1 | Net Interest Income 814,617.13 993,609.28 1,050,298.72
2 | Commission and Discount Income 137,050.16 182,826.44 166,786.01
3 | Other Operating Income 757.10 708.81 7,530.73
4 | Exchange Fluctuation Income - -
5 Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense
during the period
6 | Gross income (a) 952,424.39 1,177,144.52 1,224,615.46
7 | Alfa (b) 15% 15% 15%
g | Fixed Percentage of Gross Income 142,863.66 176,571.68 183,692.32
[c=(axb)]

9 | Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of ¢) 167,709.22
10 | Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times (e) 10.00
11 | Equivalent Risk Weighted Exposure [f=(dXe)] 1,677,092.19
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements(Continued...)
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk
As on 31st Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)

Currency

Open Position

Exchange
Rate

Open Position

(Rs. in '000)
Relevant Open
Position

INR

(FCY)
3,138.61

1.60

(NPR)
5,021.78

5,021.78

USD

54.72

119.20

6,522.78

6,522.78

GBP

EUR

THB

CHF

AUD

CAD

O|lo|Q|[N|n||WwW|N|—

SGD

JPY

—_ | —
— 1O

HKD

p—
[\

DKK

—
(98]

SEK

p—
AN

SAR

—
V)]

QAR

—
(o)

AED

—
3

MYR

p—
o2¢]

KRW

—_
O

CNY

[\
(o)

KWD

21 |(BHD

(a) Total Open Position

11,544.56

11,544.56

(b) Fixed Percentage

5%

(¢) Capital Charge for Market Risk (=axb)

577.23

(d) Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times

10.00

(e) Equivalent Risk Weighted Exposure (=cxd)

5,772.28
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements(Continued...)
Net Liquid Assets to Total Deposit Ratio
As on 31st Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021)
(Rs. in '000)
Particulars Amount
A Total Deposit & Borrowing 43,600,106.52
1. Total Deposits 42,849,642.75
2. Total Borrowings 750,463.77
B Liquid Assets 10,437,590.87
1. Cash 710,651.45
2. Bank Balance 4,597,305.56
3. Money at call and short notice -
4. Investments in government securities 5,129,633.86
5. Placements upto 90 days
C Borrowings payable upto 90 days -
D Net Liquid Assets (B-C) 10,437,590.87
E Net Liquid Assets to Total deposit (D/A1) 24.36%
F Shortfall in Ratio No Shortfall
G Percentage of deposit to be added to RWE -
H Amount to be added to risk weighted exposures -
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements (Continued..)

5.4 Operating Segment Information

104

General Information

An operating segment is a component of the Bank that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenue and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Bank’s other components, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about resources allocated to each segment and assess its
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available

Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have
identified four reporting segment for the purpose of financial reporting:

a.

Core Banking

This segment covers various generalized products and services of the Banks. All deposit accounts
(Saving, Current, Call & Fixed) and Loans provided to Institutional and Individual customers are
classified under this segment. The interest income and other fee incomes generated out of such
loans are revenue items of this segment.

Treasury

Treasury function of the bank manages the liquidity on the branch level and of the banks as a
whole. The fund invested in government bond, treasury bills, placement and shares of other
organizations are classified under this segment. The interest income of bonds and bills, forex
gains, dividend income are revenue items of this segment. Expenses of this segment comprises
of interest expenses on deposits used for making investments.

Digital Banking

This segment covers both domestic remittance and foreign inwards remittance facility served
with a purpose to provide complete remittance solution to the valued customers of the Bank.

Major sources of revenue of the segment are income from remittance, Mobile Banking, Internet
Banking, Fee, and income from remittances, ATM Card issue and renewal fee etc.

Other Component

All other revenue and expenses which cannot be classified to the above mentioned segment fall
under this segment. The income from sale of assets, Locker Charges, Agency Commission,
Insurance Commission, other fees and commission are classified under this segment.
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4. Reconciliation of Reportable Revenue, Profit or Loss, Assets and Liabilities

a. Revenue

Total revenue for reportable segment 3,994,997,650
Other Revenues -
Elimination of intersegment revenues -
Entity's revenues 3,994,997,650

b. Profit or Loss

Amount (NPR)

Total revenue for reportable segment 1,125,591,055
Other Profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment Profit -
Unallocated amount -

Profit before income tax 1,125,591,055
c. Assets

Amount (NPR)

Total assets for reportable segment 47,836,876,600

Other assets

Unallocated assets
Entity's assets 47,836,876,600

d. Liabilities

Amount (NPR)

Total Liabilities for reportable segment 44,124,405,231
Other Liabilities

Unallocated Liabilities

Entity's assets 44,124,405,231

5. Information about products and services

Amount (NPR)

Core Banking 3,532,161,530
Treasury 409,126,594
Digital Banking 21,460,797
Others 32,248,729
Total 3,994,997,650

5.5 Share Option and Share Based Payment

The Bank does not extend the share options and share based payment to any ofits employees. Thus, during
the reporting period the bank does not have any transactions that are to be accounted as per NFRS 2

“Share-based Payments.
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5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment
Contingent Liabilities

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued for
which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in these
financial statements as contingent liabilities.

Commitment

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer
in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not and the Bank has not
made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial statements as
commitments.

Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.28
5.7 Related Party Disclosures

I. List of Related Party

Directors and Key Management Personnel of the bank have been identified as Related Parties for

Bank under NAS 24.
As at 15 July 2021
Mr. Achyut Prasad Prasai | Chairman Appointed on 30" Poush 2075
Mr. Ganga Sagar Dhakal Director Appointed on 30" Poush 2075
Mr. Naresh Man Tuladhar | Director Appointed on 9" Poush 2076
Mr. Sushil Kaji Baniya Director Appointed on 30" Poush 2075
Ms. Lisa Sherchan Director Appointed on 28" Magh 2076
Mr. Raju Nath Khanal Director Appointed on 26" Shrawan 2076
Mr. Suyog Shrestha Chief Executive Officer | Appointed on 18™ Bhadra 2075
II. Related Party Transactions
Board of Director Allowance are as follows:
As at 15 July 2021
Board Meeting 23 954,000.00
Audit Committee Meeting 7 45,500.00
Risk Management Committee 5 65,000.00
Assets Money Laundering Prevention 4 26,000.00
Employee Service Benefit Committee 8 52,000.00
Total 47 1,142,500.00
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Key Managerial Personnel’s Salary and Facilities are as follows

5.8

5.9

5.10

108

As at 15 July 2021
Amount in NPR
Particulars \ Chief Executive Officer

Salary 4,150,800
Allowance 3,699,072
Dashain Allowance 563,000
Provident Fund 415,080
Statutory Bonus 756,084
Total 9,584,036

Merger and Acquisition

The Bank has neither entered into merger nor acquired any bank and financial institutions during the
reporting period.

Unpaid Dividend

The following unpaid dividend amount has remained outstanding as at the reporting date:

Unclaimed Dividend (Amount in NPR)

FY 2067/68 627,855.00
FY 2068/69 1,228,502.00
FY 2069/70 2,665,981.50
FY 2070/71 2,048,433.08
FY 2073/74 12,163,777.33
FY 2074/75 7,947,810.06
FY 2075/76 15,388,324.91
Total 42,070,683.88

Events after reporting date

Events after the reporting date are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the
reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue.

All material and important events that occurred after the reporting date have been considered and
appropriate disclosures have been made in line with NAS 10 — “Events After the Reporting Period”.

a. Impairment Charges/Reversal for Loans and Advances

The Bank has measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as
per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per
paragraph 63 of NAS 39. The Nepal Rastra Bank’s Directives No. 2, inter alia requires to bank to
classify the loans and advances based on the due dates. In calculating the due dates, the bank has

considered the recovery on installment and interest made after the reporting period and upto 22™
September 2021.
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b. Regulatory Reserve

As per NRB Circular No. 01/078/79, accrued interest income of Ashad end 2078 realized till 15™
Bhadra 2078 then such amount can be recognized as income of FY 2077/78.

The Bank has realized accrued interest income of NPR 77,164,839.32 till 15" Bhadra 2078 and
for the same bank has not reversed regulatory reserve. Consequently, bank has not transferred NPR
48,613,848.77 (Net off Staff Bonus and Tax) from Regulatory Reserve to Retained earnings.

5.11 Non-Banking Assets

Non-Banking Assets are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken
over by the Bank in the course of loan recovery. The Bank does not possess any non-banking assets as
of reporting date.

5.12 Comparative Figures

Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the
current year’s presentation.
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Shangri-la Development Bank Limited

Additional Disclosure Under BASEL II
As per Capital Adequacy Framework 2007 (Updated 2008)

The extract presented hereunder is as per disclosure requirement of Capital Adequacy Framework 2007
(Updated 2008) as issued by Nepal Rastra Bank for the year ended 31%" Ashad 2078.

1. Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy:

Core Capital (Tier 1)
Particulars Amount (NPR)

a. Paid up Equity Share Capital 2,736,972,420.00
b. Share Premium -
C. Proposed Bonus Share -
d. Statutory General Reserves 505,123,252.37
e. Retained Earnings 315.918,741.87
f. Capital Adjustment Reserve
g. Deferred Tax Assets Reserve
h. Other Free Reserve

Less: Deferred Tax Assets 33,340,536.49
Total Core Capital (Tier I) 3,524,673,877.74

Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)
Particulars Amount (NPR)

a. | Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Shares

b. | Subordinated Term Debt

c. | Hybrid Capital Instruments

d. | General Loan Loss Provisions 418,754,527.81
e. | Exchange Equalization Reserve 260,404.83
f. | Investment Adjustment Reserve

g. | Other Reserve

Total Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 419,014,932.64
* Total Qualifying Capital Amount (NPR)
Total Capital Fund (Tier I + Tier II) 3.943.688.810.38
a. | Core Capital (Tier 1 Capital) Less Deductions 3,524,673,877.74
b. | Supplementary Capital (Tier 2 Capital) 419,014,932.64
= Capital Adequacy Ratio

a. | Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 10.52%

b. | Total Capital Fund to Total Risk Weighted Exposures (CAR) 11.77%

= Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current
and future activities:
Assessment of capital adequacy of bank on regular basis taking into considerations the exposure of
bank. Also the analysis of possible impact on capital adequacy is being done on regular basis taking
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into consideration the future impacts on assumptive basis. Capital adequacy of bank and impact in
capital due to future change in nature and size of business is discussed in Risk Management Committee
and is summarized in board. Regular monitoring of nature of business is being done so that unexpected
negative impact could not take place in capital adequacy of bank. Reporting to regulatory body is being
done as prescribed by compliance department.

= Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially in
case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments.
Not Applicable.

2. Risk Exposures
= Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit, Market and Operational Risk

Aot (PR

a. Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 30,920,507,232.25
b. Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 1,677,092,187.52
C. Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 5,772,278.37
Total Risk Weighted Exposures(Before adjustment of Pillar II) 32,603,371,698.14

Adjustments under Pillar II
ALM policies & practices are not satisfactory, add 1% of net interest income -

to RWE

Add ....% of the total deposit due to insufficient Liquid Assets i}
Add RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 2 % of gross income. 244.,923,092.86
Overall risk management policies and procedures are not satisfactory. Add 652,067,433.96
2% of RWE

If desired level of disclosure requirement has not been achieved, Add.....% of
RWE
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar II) | 33,500,362,224.96

= Risk Weighted Exposures under each Categories of Credit Risk

Amount (NPR)

a. | Claims on government and central Bank -
b. | Claims on other official entities -
c. | Claims on Banks 1,263,275,623.51
d. | Claims on corporate and securities firms 6,491,996,039.09
e. | Claims on regulatory retail portfolio 12,249,561,349.67
f. | Claims secured by residential properties 3,148,971,839.63
g. | Claims secured by commercial real estate 222,950,776.20
h. | Past due claims (except for claim secured by residential properties) 1,275,274,634.45
1. | High risk claims 3,048,352,041.83
j. | Investment in Equity and other capital instruments of institutions 1,871,376,541.10
k. | Staff Loan secured by residential properties 177,789,503.79
1. | Other Assets 691,088,146.62
m. | Off Balance sheet items 479,870,736.37
Total Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit Risk 30,920,507,232.25
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= Total Risk Weighted Exposure Calculation table for Credit Risk Amount (NPR)
Total Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit Risk 30,920,507,232.25
a. | Total core Capital Fund 3,524,673,877.74
b. | Total capital Fund(Tier I and Tier II Capital) 3,943,688,810.38
c. | Tier I Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit Risk 11.40%
d. | Tier I and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit Risk 12.75%

=  Amount of NPA's (Both Gross and Net) Amount (NPR)
Substandard Loan 217,273,053.89 53,767,972.21 163,505,081.68
b. Doubtful Loan 203,386,719.32 101,047,727.13 102,338,992.19
c. Loss Loan 82,899,975.69 81,615,015.47 1,284,960.22
Total 503,559,748.90 236,430,714.80 267,129,034.10

=  NPA Ratios

Gross NPA to Gross loan and Advances | 203,559,748.90 36,293,876,868.83 | 1.39%
Net NPA to Net loan and Advances 267,129,034.10 35,526,411,294.47 | 0.75%

= Movement of Non Performing Loans

Change (%)

Restructured/Reschedule
b. Substandard Loans 217,273,053.89 118,875,412.95 82.77%
c. Doubtful Loans 203,386,719.32 109,980,905.53 84.93%
d. Bad Loans 82,899,975.69 41,363,061.52 100.42%
Total: 503,559,748.90 270,219,380.00 86.35%

= Movement in Loan Loss Provisions

| a. | Loan Loss Provision 767,465,574.36 | 535,000,417.58 | 43.45% |

=  Write off of Loans and Interest Suspense during the year: As per Note 4.40
» Details of Additional Loan Loss Provisions: Not Applicable

= Investment Portfolio

Amount (NPR)
Held to Held for Available for
I I
Investment in Treasury Bill 2,444.703,677.74
b. Investment on Other Government 1,480,560,724.79

Investment on NRB Bond and Deposit
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Held to Held for Available for
Particulars Maturity Trading sale

Investment on interbank lending
e. Investment on Shares

Micro Finance Institution 82,657,869.48
Insurance companies 279,962,786.74
Investment on Mutual Fund 131.600.690.00
Hydropower Companies 69,100.00
Hotels 2,500,897.84
Others 70,049,564.18
Total 3.925,264,402.53 566,840,908.25

3. Risk Management Function
The development bank is committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks
associated with its business activities. Management is ultimately responsible to the Board for the
development bank's system of internal controls and risk management. The internal audit of the
development bank’s branches and departments was carried out by in house Internal Audit Department
of the development bank. Risk management committee is formed under chairmanship of director,
meeting of which is conducted at least once in a quarter analyzing the various risk associated factors.

* Credit Risk

Development bank has put in place a standard procedure regarding documentation procedure, loan
appraisal and approval procedure, delegation of authority to different level, disbursement mechanism,
monitoring of loans and advances and recovery. Development bank has separate Credit Control Unit
(CCU) through which the loan files are being reviewed. Further, development bank also has a separate
and independent Risk Department. Both CCU and Credit Risk Unit under Risk Department has played
a vital role in the internal check system.

= Market Risk
Market risk related to interest rate, stock price are being monitored closely by management and
discussions are being held in risk management committee in frequent basis.

= Operational Risk

In order to minimize operational risk, bank has been following its operational manual strictly along
with NRB Directives and circulars. In addition to strengthen internal control of the bank, internal audit
of branches and departments are being conducted in annual basis. Further development bank has put in
place the practice of monthly system review system and daily MIS system for timely information of
position bank and detection of errors. Development bank has been using various risk mitigating tools
like insurance, data back — up, training of staffs etc. Development bank has framed AML/ CFT policy
to comply with the provisions of NRB and Nepal Government related to AML.

= Credit Risk Mitigants (CRM):
Eligible CRM Benefits availed:

Amount (NPR)

Deposits with Bank 299,718,206.94
Gold 142,911,179.16
Total 442,629,386.10
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